smartstore 2000

User's manual

Dealer's brandnames and trademarks mentioned in this manual remain the property of the owners.

SmartStore AG Stockholmer Allee 24 D-44269 Dortmund www.smartstore.com

© SmartStore AG 2000 All rights reserved

Table of contents

Introduction

About this program
Features
Web services 10
The manual1
About this manual
Contents of the manual 12
Symbols used
Meaning of boldface, italics, and other conventions
Backing up your data 14

Installing the program

System requirements	15
Requirements for store operator	15
Requirements for store customers	15
Requirements for the ISP	16
Installation procedure	16
The installation program	16

Using the program

Starting the program19	9
The program interface	0
Links to folders	1
Folder list	2
Main window	4
Toolbars	7
Upper toolbar	7
Navigation buttons	7
Buttons for store layout, display and design	7

Lower toolbar 28 Context-sensitive menus 29
The different working areas
List editor
Data editor
Adding a new product (quick-entry method)
Sorting the items in a list
Finding a particular item
Rearranging the columns34
Sorting your inventory34
Exiting the program

Setting up your virtual store

Preliminary tasks3	37
Basic store information	38
General store data	38
Entering your company name3	39
Choosing your company logo	11
Choosing line thickness for logo border4	12
Entering long texts4	13
Finance settings4	15
Working with tax regions4	1 5
Editing existing tax region	1 6
Defining new tax area	17
Deleting tax area	17
Administering foreign currencies4	18
Displaying prices in foreign currencies	18
Domestic customers	18
Foreign customers4	18
Internal store currency and different groups of customers4	19
Business registered inside EMU4	19
Domestic sales	19
Sales within EMU	50
Sales between EMU and non-EMU store/client	50
Sales outside EMU zone5	50
Defining key currency5	51

Editing currency table	52
Changing conversion rate	52
Editing conversion rate	53
Deleting conversion rate	54
Methods of payment	55
Credit card shorthand symbols and validation	55
Adding method of payment	56
Editing mode of payment	57
Deleting mode of payment	57
Shipping methods	58
Fixed amount shipping charges	59
Linear shipping charges.	60
Weight-based shipping charges	60
Price-based shipping charges	61
Entering product data	62
Defining product category	62
Entering products in quick-entry mode	65
Using global product folders	68
Using the "All Products" folder	68
Using the "Unassigned Products" folder	68
Entering detailed product information	69
Entering general product information	70
Defining Quantity discounts	72
Defining variants	73
Defining new variants	74
Long description of products	79
Product graphics	81
Managing product illustrations	83
Configuring your store	86
Meta tags	86
Entering store description	87
Entering key words	87
Entering target group	87
Configuration	88
Selecting primary currency	89
Selecting and displaying secondary currency	89
Selecting default tax area.	90
Selecting default mode of payment	90
Designing customer forms	91

Editing Descriptive store texts	93
Designing store layout Selecting predefined page layout Creating a new design template file Selecting language of design template to store language Adjusting language of design template to store language Selecting design templates Preview of design templates Selecting design templates Importing design templates Selecting layout Customising layout Selecting layout Browser compatibility Selecting layout	94 95 97 98 99 99 00 01 02 04
Previewing one or more pages	05 06 07
Exploring your store 10 Navigating through the store 10 Shortcut bar 10 Your store's links 10 Promotional products 11 Making an order 11 Order form 11 Customer information form 11 Choosing shipping method 11 Choosing mode of payment 12 Checking the order 13 Searching the store 14 Power search 14 Contacting the store 14 Contacting the store 14	08 09 09 10 11 12 12 13 14 15 15 15
Putting your store on the internet1	17

Other important program features

Backing up and restoring store data 1 Performing a backup 1 Restoring your data from a backup 1	23 24 25
Importing store data 1	26
Further settings 1 Changing views of the working interface 1 Basic program settings 1 General settings 1 Converting graphics 1 Database maintenance 1 Automatic numbering 1 Specify store target hosts 1 Changing catalogue language 1 Registering your software 1 Upgrading your program registration 1	 34 34 35 36 38 39 40 41 42 42
User-defined program installation 1	43
Uninstalling the program 1	45
Glossar 1	47
Index 1	49

Introduction

This chapter contains a brief description of the SmartStore 2000 Express software and tells you how to use this manual, explaining its buildup and the meaning of the symbols employed.

About this program

SmartStore 2000 Express is an e-commerce application that you can use to set up a virtual store on the internet, rapidly and easily, and without requiring that you know HTML. We have designed the program to be highly intuitive, allowing you to start designing your store in uncomplicated fashion with just a minimum of practice.

SmartStore 2000 Express allows you to display and sell a wide range of products and services. Up to 500 different products may be offered, and if your virtual store offers 20 or less, you don't even need a license to use the software.

You create your virtual store off-line, on your computer. When you are satisfied with it, your store configuration is transferred to your provider's server, and at this point you are open for business. Any interested customer can then enter your store to start browsing and shopping.

Features

To create your own store, simply follow the steps described for programming your information, in a straightforward top-down sequence. At various steps, accompanying instructions tell you what to do. This intuitive approach lets you set up your store in a very short time, check it out and launch it on the web. Special folders give instructions for recurring tasks and procedures. Build up your store on your own computer. When you're done, the store gets transferred to the internet, and is then ready for service. Special functions make it easy to enter and administer your inventory data. They include:

- Quick-entry mode, for letting you enter just the minimum amount of article information needed for the catalogue.
- Centralised, easy to use administrative functions for bulk discounts, article options, detailed article descriptions, illustrations and so on.
- A powerful assistant for importing existing data, updating the inventory through the legacy system, etc.

SmartStore 2000 Express uses non-dynamic HTML files which will run on any platform, allowing you even to run the entire store from a CD ROM. A large number of prepared, easy to use templates and sample layouts is available for your use, which you can customise and adapt as needed.

Web services

Your customers can send their orders to you through the internet, using a SmartStore web service; the same holds for messages from you to your customers. This is a free service that does not require any change of your computer's configuration. Additional useful services (requiring no registration) will be made available in the future.

If you decide to register your copy of SmartStore 2000 Express, you will be able to access more advanced services. They will allow you to handle all of your on-line business on your computer, without requiring any special business software. After registering, you simply log on to web services with your user profile, using SmartStore 2000 Express. You can then work on your orders on-line on a special web page. Other web services available include: complete order administration (including order handling, address verification, shipping, digital payment, order printout, invoicing and shipping form (web services under development).

All your order data is available to you in XML format on the Smart-Store company server. If you are already using an XML-compatible product management system, you can import and work on the data at your leisure.

The manual

About this manual

The manual describes the most current version of the software at the time of printing. When the software is updated or changed, the help documentation available on line will be updated at the same time. You can download the most recent documentation from the SmartStore company web site.

If you have questions about using SmartStore 2000 Express to which you cannot find the answers in this manual, please visit the SmartStore company web site at:

http://www.smartstore.com

You will find a list of frequently asked questions and answers (FAQ list), information on recent releases, and help documentation, which you can download for off-line use (in PDF). You can also address your questions to SmartStore company's support staff via e-mail.

Contents of the manual

This manual describes how to install and use the SmartStore 2000 Express software package. It consists of the following chapters:

- The chapter *Installing the program* describes how to install the program using the CD ROM.
- The chapter *Using the program* tells you about the program's user interface.
- The chapter Setting up your virtual store explains how to create your own virtual store, step by step, taking you right up to the point at which it goes on the web.
- The chapter Other important program features shows how to perform important special functions such as performing data backups, importing data, and customising your software installation.
- The *Glossary* introduces important technical terms and explains commonly used abbreviations.
- Use the *Index* to quickly find information on a specific detailed topic.

Symbols used

The following two symbols are used throughout this manual to draw your attention to particularly important information.



Caution! Conveys information important for protecting the security of your data.



Note!

Indicates convenient short-cuts or other tips designed to simplify using the software.

Meaning of boldface, italics, and other conventions

Boldface

Whenever menus, menu items, keys and menu buttons are mentioned, their names are printed in boldface.

Italics

References to individual chapters or different parts of the manual are printed in *italics*.

Menus and sub-menus

Sequences of menus, sub-menus and menu items are separated with a diagonal slash. If you see Tools/Template folder, for example, this refers to the menu item Template folder in the Tools menu.

Step-by-step instructions

Detailed step-by-step instructions are given in this manual in the following manner:

- Open the Tools/Template folder menu.
- Select the template folder you want.
- Confirm your selection by clicking on OK.

Lists of alternative possibilities

Wherever there are several alternatives available to the user, they will be indicated like this:

- Option A
- Option B
- Option C

Prerequisites

This manual is written for users who understand the basic principles of using a personal computer with a mouse and graphic interface. For this reason we omit detailed explanations of many simple operations (e.g. what double-clicking something means, how to select an item or a menu point, or how to click on a button). If you want to find out more about the fundamentals of using a computer, consult your Windows manual.

Backing up your data



Caution! Danger of loss of data!

Perform regular backups of your store to external media, such as CD-ROM. This is to prevent total or partial loss of data in the event of a computer disk crash. Read the section entitled *Backing up and restoring store data* beginning on page 123 and follow the instructions there.

Installing the program

This chapter will tell you how to go about installing your program. You will also find information on the requirements for your computer and its system environment.

System requirements

Requirements for store operator

In order to install and use the program, your computer system should meet the following requirements as a minimum:

- IBM-compatible PC with a Pentium CPU of at least 166 MHz
- 64 MB of RAM (recommended: 128 MB)
- 50 MB free disk space
- Internet connection and web space with an Internet Services Provider (ISP) (as a rough guideline, a store with 100 products requires around 1.7 MB of space)
- E-mail address
- Microsoft Internet Explorer 5.0
- Microsoft Windows 95/98, Windows 2000 or Windows NT 4.0 Workstation/Server (SP-4) operating system
- 15" monitor with 800 x 600 pixel resolution (minimum)
- Keyboard and mouse

Requirements for store customers

- IBM-compatible PC, access to internet and an e-mail address
- Netscape 3 or higher browser, or Microsoft Internet Explorer 4.0 or higher
- 15" monitor with 800 x 600 pixel resolution (minimum)
- Keyboard and mouse

Requirements for the ISP

- Any web server
- At least 5 MB web space
- Long file names supported

Installation procedure



Caution! Before you install SmartStore 2000 Express, you should ensure that Microsoft Internet Explorer 5.0 has been installed on your computer.

- If necessary, install Microsoft Internet Explorer 5.0 using the CD ROM provided.
- In the CD ROM, go to the "Msie5" folder and start the program "ie5setup.exe".
- Follow the instructions given by the setup assistant.

When you are done, restart your computer and proceed with installation of SmartStore 2000 Express.

The installation program

The program for SmartStore 2000 Express is located on the CD ROM. To install the program on your hard disk, follow these steps:

- Depending on your system, installation should take between three and five minutes.
- Insert the CD ROM into the appropriate drive.
 If your system does not automatically start the setup program after a few seconds, go to the CD ROM root directory and start the program Setup.exe.
- Choose the desired language from the list box in the displayed dialog box.
- Save your setting by clicking on **OK**.

The following dialog window will look like this:

🗑 SmartStore 2000 Express - InstallShield Wizard			
	Welcome to the InstallShield Wizard for SmartStore 2000 Express		
	The InstallShield(R) Wizard will install SmartStore 2000 Express on your computer. To continue, click Next.		
	< Back Next > Cancel		

- Click on Next to proceed with installation.
- Follow the instructions you will be given, clicking on the appropriate buttons to proceed or go back.



Note!

For information on custom installation, see the chapter on *User-defined program installation* beginning on page 143.



When you are finished installing, you will see this window:

• Click on Finish to finish installation.

You will now find the program icon for SmartStore 2000 Express on your windows desktop, looking like this:



• Double click on the icon to start the program.

Using the program

In this chapter you will learn about the program interface and some of the main tools available for you as a user of SmartStore 2000 Express. If you have already had experience using other Windowsbased programs, you will probably find much of the program selfexplanatory, and should be able to start using it with minimal time spent learning the functions.

Starting the program

Once you have successfully installed SmartStore 2000 Express, you must re-start your computer before you can start using the program.

• Double-click on the program icon to start the program.



The application's starting window will appear on the screen briefly, followed by the dialog box for querying your software license number:

SmartStore 2000 Express - Licensing				
Please enter your serial number. Leave the fields blank if you would like to use the free version that is limited to 20 products.				
	Serial number:			
	Note: Leave fields blank for free 20-product version.			
☑ Display this dialog every time you run the software				
Requ	Uest license OK Cancel			

- Type your serial number and click on OK.
- To avoid displaying the license query in the future, click once in the box for that option.
- If you do not have a serial number yet, click on Close.

The program interface

After you start the program, the program interface will come onto the screen. It looks like this:



The displayed program interface has several parts.

1. Menu bar

The context-sensitive menu bar contains the commands that are available for the part of the program you are currently using, or for specific data elements, if you have selected any.

2. Toolbars

The upper of the two toolbars is the standard toolbar, it contains standard commands that may be easily accessed at any time. The lower one is a context-sensitive toolbar, featuring various additional buttons. 3. Status line

The status line contains information about the ongoing program status.

4. Links to folders

These links allow you to go directly to a particular area of store administration by clicking on the corresponding icon. The administration folders contain the information required for your virtual store to operate. All the different folders are also shown sequentially in the folder list.

5. Folder list

The folder list is a "tree directory"-type repository for all your store administration folders and files. It is organised by subject matter, with each folder further sub-divided into more detailed subjects, organised sequentially.

6. Main window

The contents of the main window will vary between folders. Typically, it allows you to specify company information, administer product lines and design your store layout.

The next section describes the most important parts of the window in detail.

Links to folders

Use these links to directly access a folder dealing with a particular subject, along with all its sub-folders. Click once on the Media Manager link, for example, and the corresponding subject will be displayed in the folder list window, along with its sub-folders, like this:



Folder list

Store management made easy with a list of administration folders The information needed for setting up an internet store is organised into administration folders. The folders are broken down in turn into more detailed individual subjects, which are organised for sequential work steps. The folders are shown in this illustration:



- Setup folder

Used to specify company information, country-specific options, and details on taxes, methods of payment and foreign currency conversions.

- Product manager

Contains an itemised list of store products, organised by groups. The folder is subdivided into price structures, bulk discounts, model information, detailed product descriptions and media types.

– Media manager

Contains multimedia data for your store, such as product illustrations and manufacturer logos.

- Template manager
 Used for specifying details of payment and shipping procedures, design customer forms, and edit descriptive texts for the store site.
- Design folder
 Used to design the layout of the store's pages.
- Order folder

Used to log on to the web server for processing customer orders.

Web browser
 For starting the integrated web browser.

To view all the detailed subjects listed under a given folder, simply click once on the 'plus' symbol (+) in front of that administration folder, like this:





Note!

Click on the folder icon or folder name to have a short summary of the subjects it contains displayed in the main window.

Main window

When you open an administration folder or sub-folder, you will generally find a short description of the contents. This makes it easy to set up your store for the first time, and helps you find the necessary data later, in administering the store. The exact appearance of the main window depends on the subject, as shown in the examples below:

Example 1: Open folder, showing detailed subjects treated in the sub-folders

Master Data			
Folder List ×	Attribute	Description	
🖃 🔣 Store	🔹 🚸 General Data	Specifies merchant address, telephone numbers and company logo	
🗐 🛱 Setup	🖗 E-mail Settings	Specifies all eMail addresses incl. addresses for purchase orders	
🖻 🕾 Master Data	🗐 GTB	Enables you to write or assign the general terms and conditions	
🖉 🚸 General Data			
👘 🖗 E-mail Settings			
GTB			
Finances			

Example 2: List editor view of descriptive store text

Homepage			
Folder List	r List X Attribute		Value
⊡- 🗱 Store		💭 Welcome Message	Welcome to our online store
🗄 🖓 🚡 Setup		Introduction	Write a short introduction.
🗄 🧐 Product Manager		Heading 'Inside area'	Inside shop
🗄 📲 Media Manager		Heading 'Power search'	Power search
🖹 🕼 Template Manager		(Power search' description	Are you looking for a particular item? You'll fin
	க	(Dialog' heading	Dialog
		(Dialog' description	Feedback, e-mail forms and support
		ab 'GTB' heading	GTB
Store Text		ab 'GTB' description	Our general terms and conditions of business
Homepage		ab 'Service' heading	Service
		(ab) 'Service' description	You can always contact us with any questions
		Shir	A

Example 3:	Foreign	currencies in	the	data editor	•
------------	---------	---------------	-----	-------------	---

Currencies							72
Folder List ×	Ľ	Base 🛆	Currency S	Description	Exchange rate	Decimal	Symbol for
⊡🐯 Store							
E Macter Data	£	EUR	PTE	Portuguese Escudos	200.482000	,	
E Regional Settings	E	EUR	LUF	Lux Franc	40.339900	,	•
⊨ Finances	£	EUR	BEF	Belgium Francs	40.339900	,	
Tax Areas	£	EUR	ESP	Spanish Pesetas	166.386000	,	•
Currencies	£	EUR	CHF	Swiss Francs	1.580000		1
Shipping Methods	∎ €	EUR	GRD	Greek Drachmas	334.840000	,	
	£	EUR	FIM	Finnish Markkas	5.945730	,	
🗄 🧐 Product Manager	£	EUR	IEP	Irish Pounds	0.787564		,
🕀 📲 Media Manager	É	EUR	FRF	French Francs	6.559570		
⊡ ∰ Template Manager	É	EUR	DEM	German Marks	1.955830	,	
	É	EUR	USD	US Dollars	1.084560		,
Web Browser	É	EUR	NLG	Dutch Guilders	2.203710		
	É	EUR	ITL	Italian Liras	1936.270000		
	E	EUR	ATS	Austrian Shillings	13.760300		
	Ę	EUR (K	EUR	Euros	1.000000	,	

Example 4: Administering your inventory in the data editor

All Products 🛛 🕺								
Folder List ×								9
⊡- 🐯 Store	Find elements in All Products							
Setup Product Manager MI Products Unassigned Products Categories Setup Setup Categories Setup Setup Categories Setup Setup Setup Setup Setup Categories Setup Setup Setup Setup Setup Categories Setup Setup Setup Categories Setup S	Enter ?) for searc	Enter wildcards (* or ?) for extended search range. Enter wildcards (* or Description 1 and 2:						
Web Browser	Drag a	colums	beader bere t	o group by that column				
	brag a	coldino				_		
	🗋 Iter	m No.	Description 1		Sales Price	Manufact	Display on	Тор
	() COC	04612	EtherLink III I	5A TPO (RJ-45) 100er Pack	39.00		✓	
	🌍 сос	04705	EtherLink III I	5A TP (RJ-45 & AUI) 100	24.00			
	🌍 C01	17791	Fast EtherLink	EISA 10/100 TX (RJ-45)	89.00			
	🌍 C01	18117	Fast EtherLink	EISA 10/100 TX (RJ-45)	30.00			
	🏈 C02	2140G	EtherLink III I	5A Combo - Bulkware (Nu	97.00			
	🏈 C02	23044	EtherLink III I	5A Combo (RJ-45, BNC &	39.00			
	🌍 cos	3164G	EtherLink III I	SA TPC - Bulkware (Nur K	26.00			



Example 5: Previewing a new page in your store site, using the integrated browser

(b • c)

ŧ

:=

Toolbars

Upper toolbar

The upper toolbar allows you to carry out any of a number of frequently used standard commands with just one mouse-click.

🖕 🕶 🔿 🖻 🗊 🕼 Designs 🛛 👰 Preview in Bri	owser 🕸 Create Store 🔬 Publish Store 💕
----------------------------------------	----------------------------------------------

Navigation buttons

The first three buttons are grouped together; they are used to help you navigate around the folder list.

- Click on the button to go back to the folder you worked on previously.
- Click on the button to go forward, i.e. in the direction of the current folder.
- Click on the volume button for a drop-down list of all the folders you have worked on, in chronological order. Select the one you want to go to by clicking on it once.

This button is only active when you are on one of the detailed subjects in a sub-folder. Clicking here takes you up one level to the next higher folder.

To gain screen space for the main window, click on this button; the folder list will disappear.

Buttons for store layout, display and design

This button opens the "Designs" dialog window, allowing you to choose from a range of standard layouts for your virtual store.

If you want to see a preview of what a new store area will look like, without re-generating the entire store, click on this button. You can then "test-drive" your new inventory section, with just a few products entered, without having to generate and load the entire store.

When you are ready to convert your complete virtual store into a functioning web site, click on this button.

Once you have completed and tested your store, click here to send it onto the internet.

ß

This button opens the on-line help, with a table of contents and index to help you rapidly find the needed information.

Lower toolbar

The lower, extended toolbar allows you to access a context-sensitive range of specialised commands, depending on the administration folder you are working on.

For example, if you are working on the store inventory, the toolbar will look like this:



The first group of three buttons on the left is the same for all folders, although they may be enabled or disabled, depending on your current procedure:

<u>*</u> 1228	Create new unit
r in the second s	Edit current unit
×	Delete current unit



If you rest your mouse pointer over a button for a short while, a tip with an explanatory text will be displayed.

Context-sensitive menus

While you are working on data in the main window, you can rightclick at any time for a context-sensitive menu that gives you the main commands needed for that part of your work.

Drag a	colums hea	der here to group by that column.		
🗋 Iten	m No. 🛆	Description 1	Sales Price	Manufacturer
402	:02-0001	AIWA NSX-AV720Pro	125.00	
9 402	02-0002	Sony MHC-RX 77	189.00	
9 402	02-0003	Philips AS 680C	215.00	
9 402	02-0004	5 🔠 New Product	259.00	
		P Move to Category	 	
		Preview in the Browser	 	
		Cu <u>r</u> rent View		
		🗙 <u>D</u> elete Ctrl+D		
		😰 Edit	 	

Note that the commands in context-sensitive menus always refer to the elements currently selected.

The different working areas

The main window is the core of the program interface: this is where you do the actual work of creating and administering your store. All the main tasks that you will need to create the store can be called up with a right-click within the main window.

Depending on what you want to do, the main window in SmartStore 2000 Express offers different types of working area:

- list editor, for selecting and defining parameters in a predefined format, and
- the data editor, for entering parameters and other data of any form desired.

List editor

The list editor is used to work on different fields, which are shown as symbols in the main window display:

Attribute	Value	Description
(ab) Weight Unit	kg	The weight unit becomes a fixed value in the Prod
E Default Quantity Unit	un.	
E Default Tax Rate	1	
Key currency in the Product manager	EUR	
✓ Gross Prices	Yes	Specifies that prices entered in the product mana(

Different icons indicate different types of information: in some cases you choose among pre-defined labels, in others you select a numerical value out of a list. Click once on the symbol to open a dialog window in which you can make your selection. The most common symbols used are the following:

के) वि	enter a short text
123	enter a numerical value
Ś	enter an e-mail address
	enter a long text
11	select a numerical value or text label from a list
✓	enable or disable an option
ŝ	open an image file with the "Open" dialog window
4	open a text file with the "Open" dialog window
ß	formula type

The Design folder contains more symbols, which have to do with the formal presentation of your store.



Double click on the symbol next to a list item to get a dialog window displayed allowing you to design that item.

Data editor

The data editor is used to edit the information displayed in a table directly. It also allows you to: enter new information using the quick-entry bar at the top of the screen; sort the information in a column by clicking on the column header, or group the information by column values. If the tables are very large, you can use the box at the top of each column to look for a specific entry.

Adding a new product (quick-entry method)

To create a new product item, just click in the bar at the top of the screen and enter the item information.

Drag a colums header here to group by that column.								
Display on the Web								

Sorting the items in a list

To sort the items in a list, click at the head of the respective column.

Drag a colums header here to group by that column.							
🗋 Item No. 🛆	Description 1	Sales Price	Manufacturer	Display on the Web			
4							
🦃 40202-0001	AIWA NSX-AV720Pro	125.00		✓			
40202-0002	Sony MHC-RX 77	189.00					
40202-0003	Philips AS 680C	215.00					
40202-0004	Sanyo DC-F 430	259.00					

Finding a particular item

If your inventory is very large, you may need help finding a specific item. It is possible to search for a particular item number or for an item name (Description 1 or 2).

						9		
F	Find elements in Category Home stereos							
Er ?) se	Enter wildcards (* or ?) for extended search range. Item no.: Description 1 and 2: Find now							
Dra	ag a colums he	ader here to group by that	t column.					
ß	Item No. 🛆	Description 1	Sales Price	Manufacturer	Display on the Web	Top Product		
4	40202-0001	AIWA NSX-AV720Pro	125.00			V		
Ø	40202-0002	Sony MHC-RX 77	189.00		✓			
\bigcirc	40202-0003	Philips AS 680C	215.00		v			
\bigcirc	40202-0004	Sanyo DC-F 430	259.00					

When entering the description you want to find, you can use the wild card characters * and ?, like this:

- tele* will return any of these items: telephone, television, etc.
 (* stands for character strings of any length)
- Sony R? will return any of these: Sony RX, Sony RY, etc.
 (? stands for exactly one character)

You can use wild card characters inside an expression, too.



Note! Shrink the search tool to gain more space for your inventory table. Just click on the magnifying lens icon.

Rearranging the columns

You can rearrange the way the columns are lined up. To do this, click on the column header and drag it to its new position, like this:

Drag a colums he	Drag a colums header here to group by that column.							
	L Description 1	Sales Price	Manufacturer	Display on the Web				
† Č		ļ						
40202-0001	AIWA NSX-AV720Pro	125.00		✓				
40202-0002	Sony MHC-RX 77	189.00						
40202-0003	Philips AS 680C	215.00						
40202-0004	Sanyo DC-F 430	259.00	•					

Sorting your inventory

You can arrange even very large inventories into easy-to-read groups, using the sort tool. Just choose the columns and values by which you want to sort your inventory.

For example, suppose you want the inventory grouped by 'Display on the Web', in descending order, and within the 'Display on the Web' groups, you want to separate items which you are promoting as 'Top Products' from the rest. To do this, click on the desired column header and drag it into the dark-grey area at the top of the screen. Change the sort order (ascending or descending) by clicking on the column header.

Drag a colums header here to group by that column. Top Product						
b	Description 1	Item No. 🛆	Sales Price	Manufacturer	Display on the Web	Top Product

Here is what the screen display will look like in this example:

Display on the Web 🗸 📕 Top Product 🗸								
Description 1	Sales Price	Item No.	Display on the Web	Manufact	Top Product $ abla$			
Display on the Web: Yes (13 P	roducts)							
- Top Product: True (3 Produ	cts)							
AIWA NSX-AV720Pro	125.00	40202-0001						
🧐 Philips AS 680C	215.00	40202-0003						
Sony MHC-RX 77	189.00	40202-0002						
- Top Product: False (10 Pro	ducts)							
🔅 EtherLink III ISA TP	0.00	C054444						
🔅 EtherLink III ISA TP	65.00	C054418						
Sanyo DC-F 430	259.00	40202-0004						
OfficeConnect ISDN	. 0.00	C085168						
🔅 EtherLink III ISA TP	24.00	C004705						
🔅 EtherLink III ISA TP	26.00	C03164G						
🔅 EtherLink III ISA TP	25.00	C054396						
Sast EtherLink EISA	30.00	C018117						
EtherLink III ISA TP	0.00	C058114						
🖤 EtherLink III ISA TP	39.00	C004612						
Display on the Web: No (11 Pr	oducts)							
- Top Product: False (11 Products)								
EtherLink III ISA Co	39.00	C023044						
🛛 🧐 EtherLink III ISA Co	0.00	C060423						

Exiting the program

To leave SmartStore 2000 Express, choose File/Exit from the menu or use the shortcut Ctrl+B.

📄 SmartStore 2000 Express									
	<u>F</u> ile	<u>E</u> dit	⊻iew	<u>T</u> ools	Actions	2			
New Product									
Í	Import Data								
	_	kup copy							
		Page Setyp							
	D.	Print Pre <u>v</u> iew							
	8	Print	Ctrl+P						
		E <u>x</u> it				Ctrl+B			
Setting up your virtual store

In this section, you will learn how to set up your virtual store. Once you have acquainted yourself with the main procedures, you can proceed through the individual steps and set up your virtual store so that it is ready for business on the internet.

Preliminary tasks

Before creating your new store with SmartStore 2000 Express, you must do a number of things:

- Decide what currency you want to use for your products (see page 48).
- Make sure that you have all necessary product illustrations, in JPEG, JPG or GIF format and as good quality as possible. Save the illustrations in a central location on your computer, sorted into folders by product type.
- If you are offering brandname products, make sure you have the appropriate manufacturer's logos ready.
- Make sure you have collected all the detailed product documentation you want to offer your prospective customers.

You should also be aware of the following:

- Once you have launched the program, you can immediately start entering your store data. You do not need to first create a new file.
- The folder list gives all the administration folders and the detailed sub-folders in sequence; it is recommended to work your way through them in this order, from top to bottom.
- In the examples below, you will see how some of the commonly used procedures work. The same techniques are used when you get to the other tasks; for this reason they are not described for every task.

Well-prepared information material is important for your store's sales performance!

Basic store information

In this section, you will use the list editor and different dialog windows to enter basic store information and select your main options.

General store data

Launch the program and go the first administration folder, "Setup".

- Double click on the "Setup" folder. The folder will be displayed with all its sub-folders.
- Double click on the "Master Data" folder. The corresponding sub-folders will be displayed:

Master Data			
Folder List	×	Attribute	Description
□ Store □ Image: Store □ Image: Store Image: Store Image: Master Data Image: Store Image: Store Image: Store	js	 Image: Section of the section of the	Specifies merchant address, telephone numbers and company logo Specifies all eMail addresses incl. addresses for purchase orders Enables you to write or assign the general terms and conditions

• In the folder list, click on the "General Data" entry.

The main window will display the following list editor:

General Data			
Folder List ×	Attribute	Value	Description
⊡ 🕰 Store	Company Name	Sample Store LTD	
📄 🖓 Setup	(Distrect and house no.	Sample Str. 23	
🖃 🧰 Master Data	الله الله الله الله الله الله الله الله	12345	
General Data	赴]City	Sampletown	
🛒 🖓 E-mail Settings	(December 2) State/County	Samplecounty	
GTB	Country	Samplecountry	
E. Regional Settings	Telephone	01234/12345578	
	ab Fax	01234/12347789	
Lists	www address	http://YourCompany.com	
Product Manager	Logo File	C:\Program Files\Smart	Specifies an image file that
E Meula Mailayer	Alternative text for	This is the alternative t	The alternative text appea
	E Logo Border Style	1	Places a visible border aro

Entering your company name

• In the main window, double click on the **b** symbol of the first item in the list.

The following dialog box will be displayed:

General Data			x
General			
Company Nan	ne		
Sample Store LTD			
	ок	Cancel	Ap <u>p</u> ly

• Enter your company name and click on OK to finish.

The dialog box will disappear, and you will see the new information displayed in the list.

General Data					
Folder List ×	Attribute	Value	Description		
⊡ 🗱 Store	Company Name	Sample Store LTD			
🖻 🖓 🚡 Setup	Difference and house no.	Sample Str. 23			
🖃 🕋 Master Data	به Zip	12345			
🔤 🚸 🛛 General Data	சு City	Sampletown			
🛛 🙀 E-mail Settings	(a)State/County	Samplecounty			
GTB	Country	Samplecountry			
	(ab) Telephone	01234/12345578			
	ab Fax	01234/12347789			
⊥ists	www address	http://YourCompany.com			
Product Manager	Logo File	C:\Program Files\Smart	Specifies an image file that		
Hedia Manager	ab Alternative text for	This is the alternative t	The alternative text appea		
i ±…ngr i emplate Manager ⊞…∭ Design	Logo Border Style	1	Places a visible border aro		

• Continue with the remaining items in the list in the same way.

Choosing your company logo

To assign a company logo, follow these instructions:

• In the main window, double click on the symbol of the "Logo file" item in the list.

The following dialog box will be displayed:

General Data	×
General	
Logo File	
Specifies an image file that will be displayed in the header area of your store	
Program Files\SmartStore\SmartStore 2000 Express\CompanyLogo.gif	
OK Cancel Apply	

• Enter the complete file name and location for the desired logo, or select a file by clicking on a shown here:

Open				? ×
Look in: 🖂 own	▼ 🗢 Ē (* Ⅲ•	(125x30)	Q
g CompanyLogo g LogoButtonGraph			Compaŋy _{o1}	go
File name: CompanyLogo Files of type: Gif (*.gif)	•	Open Cancel		

• Click on OK to confirm your selection.

Choosing line thickness for logo border

You can choose the thickness of the line that encases your company logo. Proceed like this:

General Data			
Folder List ×	Attribute	Value	Description
⊡ 🐯 Store	Company Name	Sample Store LTD	
🖃 🛱 Setup)Street and house no.	Sample Str. 23	
🚍 💼 Master Data	ம்) Zip	12345	
General Data	ஸ்City	Sampletown	
√⊊ E-mail Settings	∰State/County	Samplecounty	
GTB) Lountry	Samplecountry	
Regional Settings	(a) Telephone	01234/12345578	
Hinances	ها Fax	01234/12347789	
	働 WWW address	http://YourCompany.com	
H-S Product Manager	Logo File	C:\Program Files\Smart	Specifies an image file that will be d
E Meula Manager	Alternative text for	This is the alternative t	The alternative text appears in the
E Manager	📸 Logo Border Style	1	Places a visible border around the lo

• In the main window, double click on the symbol in front of the list item "Logo Border Style".

The following dialog box will be displayed:

General Data X
General
Logo Border Style
Places a visible border around the logo in the store (0=no frame)
~
OK Cancel Apply

- Click on the button to get the drop-down box showing the available options, and choose the desired thickness of the line by clicking on it.
- Click on OK to confirm your selection.

Entering long texts

To enter long texts, proceed like this:

GTB			
Folder List ×	Attribute	Value	Description
🖃 📆 Store	🛞 Write GTB		The GTB text will be embedded in the GTB page o
🗐 🖓 🚡 Setup	GTB File		Specifies a text file that is embedded in the GTB [
🖻 🕋 🧰 Master Data			
💮 🚸 General Data			
E-mail Settings			
GTB			
🗄 🕋 Regional Settings			
E Finances			

- In the main window, click on the symbol next to the list item "Write GTB".
- The following dialog box will be displayed:

GTB	X
General	
Write GTB	
The GTB text will be embedded in the GTB page of the store	
LICENCE AGREEMENT<\b>	<u>^</u>
	Y
OK Cancel	Apply

• In the edit window that is now on the screen, enter the desired text. When you are done, click on OK to save the text.



Notes!

- If you enter a text in "Write GTB", but then specify a file location "GTB File" in the next line, your store will appear with the terms of business specified in the file. In other words, the file, if one is given, will always have priority.
- When you are entering long texts manually, remember that formatting of paragraphs, etc. must be done using HTML tags, not in the usual way with line breaks, the Enter key or the Tab key.

When you are done, continue working through the "Master Data" and the "Regional settings" folders, using the procedures you have just learned. You will see that the only thing that changes within the dialog windows is the method for entering the data or choosing an option. Where necessary, explanatory texts are given.

Finance settings

In this section you will be working on tables, using the same procedures you probably have already used with standard database software.

Working with tax regions

Tax regions are countries or states in which different rates of tax apply for various types of products. For example, in Germany sales tax 1 is currently 16%, while sales tax 2, which applies to books and periodicals, is 7%. In other countries, other taxes may apply. Once you have determined the taxation details for your potential customers' countries, SmartStore 2000 Express allows you to define a separate tax region for each case, giving the rate of tax that applies within that region. You can then show customers the amount of tax that applies to the products they have selected.

		Order form	
n no.	Description	Options Discount Unit price Amount	Total
2-0001	AIWA NSX-AV720Pro	No Variants: 0.00 125.00 1 1:	25.00
2-0002	Sony MHC-RX 77	0.00 189.00 1 18	89.00
2-0003	Philips AS 680C	0.00 215.00 1 2	15.00
		Subtotal USD 5	29.00
		Shipping costs USD	10.00
		Mode of payment fees USD	10.00
		Included VAT USD	35.91)
		Final amount USD 5	49.00
		Alternative EUR 5	06,20



Caution!

If you intend to sell to foreign customers, make sure you are fully informed about the tax legislation applying in each of the countries or states. Editing existing tax region

- Double click on the "Finances" folder. The folder's structure will be displayed.
- Double click on the "Tax areas" folder. A table will be shown, with "Your country" already defined; this is the country in which your business is registered. The tax rates given here are those which you will be able to assign to the individual products in your inventory.

Tax Areas						
Folder List ×	D	Tax Area 🛆	Description	Tax Rate 1 (%)	Tax Rate 2 (%)	Tax Rate 3 (%)
E Store						
E-Main Setup	8	AB	Alberta (Canada)	7	8	0
		АК	Alaska	7	0	0
Finances		AL	Alabama	7	0	0
		AR	Arkansas	7	0	0
		AZ	Arizona	7	0	0
Modes of Payr	Ś	BC	British Columbia	7	8	0
	S	CA	California	7	0	0

To change any of the tax rates displayed, you can either

- click inside that cell and type the new rate, or
- double click on the Symbol to have this dialog window displayed:

Taxes	<u>></u>	<
<u>T</u> ax Area:	AB	
Lab <u>e</u> l:	Alberta (Canada)	
Tax Rate <u>1</u> (%):	7	
Tax Rate <u>2</u> (%):	8	
Tax Rate <u>3</u> (%):	0	
Tax Rate <u>4</u> (%):	0	
Help	OK Cancel Apply	

• Then enter the new official tax rate and, when you are done, click on OK.

Defining new tax area

To define a new tax area, just click in the quick-entry bar just underneath the table header, or right-click to get the context-sensitive menu, then select New tax area for a blank version of the dialog window mentioned earlier.

🗋 Tax Area 🛆	Description	Tax Rate 1 (%)	Tax Rate 2 (%)	Ta
IN	Indiana			
🚯 AB	Alberta (Canada)	7	8	0
🔇 AK	Alaska	7	0	0
€® AI	Alahama	7	n	Λ

Deleting tax area

To delete a tax area, proceed like this:

- Select the line in the table in which that tax area is listed.
- Right-click to get the context-sensitive menu, then select the command Delete.
- You will be asked to confirm your selection. Click on Yes to finish.

Administering foreign currencies

The next step is to define the currencies that will be used and accepted in your virtual store. The currency table performs two important functions:

- it allows you to display prices in foreign customer's native currency, and
- it allows you to specify your store currency, which will be used for conversion purposes in transactions with various groups of foreign customers.

Displaying prices in foreign currencies

Once your virtual store is set up on the World Wide Web, you can of course offer your products just as easily to foreign customers.

Domestic customers

If all your customers are located in your own country, you can handle all transactions in the domestic currency, from price displays to keeping track of payments.

Foreign customers

You can offer your products to customers around the world in their local currency.

If you have customers from a foreign country, you should give them your price information in their local currency. If your price information is available only in Australian dollars, say, then a customer from Belgium or from Argentina may decide to look elsewhere.

To do this, you can use the currency table contained in SmartStore 2000 Express. It allows you to maintain conversion rates so that all of your store prices can be displayed in a different currency at the click of a button. The conversion rates are based on your internal store currency, which is described below.

Internal store currency and different groups of customers

The euro has already become the de facto basis currency for the European countries which have joined the Economic and Monetary Union or EMU. During the euro transition period, which ends on 1 January 2002, there are a few important guidelines you should note.

Business registered inside EMU

If you are operating your store inside the EMU or if you have customers from the EMU, it is recommended to enter price information in euros. Otherwise, if you use the national European currency, you will find that you have to re-enter all of the prices, in euros, as of 1 January 2002. The currency table already has the correct conversion rates for the currencies that will go into the euro; these rates will not change between now and 2002, when the national currencies will be fully phased out.



Caution!

It is strongly recommended to make the euro your internal store currency, and not to wait for the end of the transition period. Prices can continue to be displayed in whatever currency you prefer, or the customer chooses.



Caution!

Note that price information will be saved in the currency which you have defined as your store's internal currency (prior to entering the product information). There is *no* automatic conversion of prices if you change your internal currency at a later time.

Domestic sales

If your business is registered in the same country as your customers, and you do not intend to sell to any foreign customers, then you should simply choose your national currency as the store's internal currency. You will not need the currency table at all in this case.

Sales within EMU

You are required by law to make all conversions between EMU member currencies via the euro, and not by direct conversion from one member currency to the other. Suppose that your business is registered within the common European currency zone (the EMU), and all of your sales will be to customers who are within the EMU zone, but outside your home country. In this case, you have to use the euro, and not your national currency, as the store's internal currency. It would be against the rules to use direct conversion rates between your national currency and that of your customer's countries (e.g. between German marks and British pounds). All currency calculations have to be done against the euro reference. The currency table contained in your software package is already configured for sales of this kind.

Sales between EMU and non-EMU store/client

If your business is registered within the EMU and you intend to make sales world-wide, for example, then again you are obliged to use the euro as your internal currency. All conversions between EMU-member currencies and non-member currencies must be done via the euro. You will have to add entries to your currency table for conversions between the euro and your customers' currencies.

If you business is registered outside the EMU and you want to sell your products within the EMU, you should declare your national currency as your store's internal currency. Remember that your currency table should not contain direct conversion rates between your store currency and the EMU-member currencies, only between your store currency and the euro.

Sales outside EMU zone

Suppose that your store is based in the USA, and you are dealing exclusively with South American customers. In this case the euro is irrelevant and you should use direct conversion rates. It is recommended that you use the US dollar as your store's internal currency, and enter the conversion rates for the desired South American countries' national currencies in your currency table.

Defining key currency

• Open the Setup/Regional settings/General sub-folder and double-click on the symbol next to "Key currency in the Product manager".

General				
Folder List	x	Attribute	Value	Description
🖃 📲 🕄 Store		weight Unit	kg	The weight unit becomes a fixed value in th
🖻 🖓 🛗 Setup		E Default Quantity Unit	un.	
😟 💼 Master Data		E Default Tax Rate	1	
🖹 💼 Regional Settings		Key currency in the Product manager	USD	
General		✓ Gross Prices	Yes	Specifies that prices entered in the product
Wumber Form	at			
Time Format				

A dialog window will open with a drop-down list of the available currencies.

• Choose the desired key currency for the Product manager.

Editing currency table

Changing conversion rate

• Open the folder Setup/Finances/Currencies.

Currencies						
Folder List ×		Base	Currency Symbol	Description	Exchange rate for the base curr	Decima
🖃 📆 Store						
E Setup	l€	FUR	TFD	Irish Pounds	0 787564	
⊞ Master Data	l∎≊ e€	LISD (Key Currency)	FLID	Furos	1 000000	•
E Care Settings			LON		1.000000)
		EUR			1,004360	•
		EUR		Swiss Francs	1.580000	•
Modes of Paymer		EUR	DEM	German Marks	1.955830	,
Shinning Method		EUR	ATS	Austrian Shillings	13.760300	
	I∎€	EUR	ESP	Spanish Pesetas	166.386000	,
🗄 🧐 Product Manager	∎.	EUR	ITL	Italian Liras	1936.270000	
🕀 🖓 Media Manager	É	EUR	NLG	Dutch Guilders	2.203710	•
⊡ ∰ Template Manager	E	EUR	PTE	Portuguese Escudos	200.482000	,
	É	EUR	GRD	Greek Drachmas	334.840000	,
Web Browser	E	EUR	BEF	Belgium Francs	40.339900	,
	É	EUR	LUF	Lux Franc	40.339900	,
	É	EUR	FIM	Finnish Markkas	5.945730	,
	É	EUR	FRF	French Francs	6.559570	•
1						

- Click in the entry line for Base and select a currency from the list.
- Fill in the remaining cells with the currency's abbreviation, its complete name and its conversion rate with respect to the "base" currency.



Note!

If you have selected the euro as your basic currency, then you must enter "Euro (internal currency)" in the currency table for the euro-to-euro "conversion rate" (see illustration above).

• Use the last two cells to select, from the available options, the symbol to be used for the decimal separator and for the thousands' number group separator.

Editing conversion rate

- Click in the cells you wish to modify and enter the desired new information. Or:
- Double click on the symbol to open a dialog window in which you can change the currency information.

The screen will look like this:

Currencies	×
Exchange Rate	
B <u>a</u> sis:	E <u>x</u> change Rate: <u>C</u> ode:
1 EUR =	1.084560 USD
Lab <u>e</u> l:	U5 Dollars
Format	
Format for <u>P</u> os. Amounts:	×1,1
Format for <u>N</u> eg. Amounts:	(× 1,1)
Decimal Symbol:	
Number of Decimal Places:	2
Symbol for Digit Grouping:	,
Number of Digits per Group:	3
<u>H</u> elp OK	Cancel Apply

In this dialog window, you can select the desired options for the selected currency by clicking on the 🔽 button for the drop-down list.

- Select the basic currency.
- Enter the present conversion rate, the conversion abbreviation and its full name.

In some countries, prices may be displayed differently. Choose the desired display options for your prices from the remaining lists.

• Confirm your settings by clicking on OK.

Deleting conversion rate

If you wish to delete a conversion rate you no longer need, proceed like this.

- Select the line in your currency table corresponding to that currency.
- Right-click to get the context-sensitive menu and select the command Delete.
- Confirm your selection by clicking on Yes.

Methods of payment

The "Modes of Payment" folder allows you to define various modes by which a customer may pay for an order.

• Open the folder Setup/Finances/Modes of Payment.

Modes of Payment						
Folder List ×	D	Mode of payment no. \land	Description	Description	Mode of payment type	Active in th
E 🕰 Store						
E- 🎢 Setup	9	AMER	American Express		Credit Card	
⊕	9	BANK	Bankcard		Credit Card	
Finances	9	C.O.D	Collect on delivery		Normal	
Tax Areas	9	DC	DC		Credit Card	
	9	DINE	Diners Club		Credit Card	
Shipping Methods	9	DISC	Discover		Credit Card	
E Lists	9	INV	Invoice		Normal	
🕀 🧐 Product Manager	9	JCB	JCB		Credit Card	

Credit card shorthand symbols and validation

If a customer has entered his credit card number in the store, SmartStore 2000 Express validates this number on the base of the ISO credit card shorthand symbols. If you change a shorthand symbol, this validation cannot take place anymore. The following table lists all used credit card shorthand symbols:

Shorthand symbol	Description	Mode of payment type
AMER	American Express	Credit Card
BANK	Bankcard	Credit Card
DC	DC	Credit Card
DINE	Diners Club	Credit Card
DISC	Discover	Credit Card
JCB	JCB	Credit Card
MAST	Mastercard	Credit Card
NIKO	Nicos	Credit Card
NN	cash on delivery	Normal
RE	payment by invoice	Normal
SAIS	Saison	Credit Card
UC	UC	Credit Card
UCAR	Ucard	Credit Card
VISA	VISA	Credit Card

Adding method of payment

• In the entry line at the top, click in the cell for Mode of payment no. and enter a brief description of the new mode of payment.

This description is intended for internal use only.

- In both cells Description, enter the information you want your customer to be shown on this mode of payment when deciding which method to use.
- From the list window, select the appropriate Mode of payment type:

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Normal	The store operator may authorise several different methods of payment under "Normal"; for example, pay- ment by invoice, cash on delivery, etc. The customer does not need to give any additional infor- mation here.
Direct debit	Here the customer will be asked to give the details of his or her bank account. You should only define this type of method once, to avoid the customer being asked to en- ter the same information several times over.
Credit card	Define a separate type of method for each type of credit card you wish to accept. The customer can then select the desired card from a list.
Telephone	The customer may choose to pay for the order off-line, calling and giving his or her credit card information by telephone.

• Put a check in the Active in Store box if you want this method of payment to be authorised for use in your store.

Editing mode of payment

You can edit an existing mode of payment by either clicking inside the corresponding line of the table, or by double-clicking on the symbol.

You will see the following dialog window:

Modes of Payment	×
Mode of Payment <u>N</u> o.:	AMER
Lab <u>e</u> l:	American Express
Description:	
Mode of Payment Type:	Credit Card
Eee:	0.00
Tax Rate:	1
🔽 Active in Store	
Help OK	Cancel Apply

• Make the desired changes and click on OK to save your changes.

Deleting mode of payment

To delete a mode of payment you no longer need, proceed like this.

- Select the appropriate line in the table of modes of payment.
- Right-click to get the context-sensitive menu and select the command Delete.
- Confirm your selection by clicking on Yes.

Shipping methods

In the folder "Shipping Methods" you can select various delivery services and determine the customer charges. When the customer places an order, a list of the available shipping methods will be displayed, along with the shipping charges.

 Go to the "Shipping Methods" folder and double-click on the symbol next to one of the entries in the list.

ipping Methods	
General	
Shipping Method <u>N</u> o.:	1
Lab <u>e</u> l:	UPS
Description:	UPS (US parcel delivery service)
<u>T</u> ax Rate:	1
Cost Finding	
<u>M</u> ethod:	Linear
Eixed Amount:	10.00
Percentage or Factor:	5.00
Cost Finding Based On:	Weight
B <u>a</u> se Amount:	2.50
Maximum Amount:	40.00
Free of Charge from Order	700.00
🗸 Active in store	
Help	OK Cancel Apply

The dialog window shown below will appear:

In the "General" part of the window, make the following settings:

- Enter the Shipping Method No. (if you have not specified automatic numbering).
- Enter a Label and Description for the shipping method.



Note!

The Label entry is for internal store use only, while the Description is used in the store to inform the customer about the shipping method in question.

• Select the Tax Rate that applies to this method of shipment.

For the shipping charges, you can choose between Fixed amount and Linear.

Fixed amount shipping charges

You can charge your customer for shipping using a fixed amount. In this case, the only variables you specify are the amount of the Fixed amount and Free of Charge from Order.

Cost Finding	
Method:	Fixed amount
Eixed Amount:	10.00
Percentage or Factor:	5.00
Cost Finding Based On:	Weight
B <u>a</u> se Amount:	2.50
Maxim <u>u</u> m Amount:	40.00
Free of Charge from Order	700.00
🔽 Active in store	
Help	OK Cancel Apply

- In the Fixed amount field, enter the amount which you want to charge your customers for shipment of an order.
- In the Free of Charge from Order field, enter the minimum size of order for which you want to offer the customer free shipping.
- Put a check in the Active in Store box to authorise fixed amount shipping charges for use in your store.

Linear shipping charges

You can charge your customer for shipping according to a linear cost calculation based on Weight or Price.

Weight-based shipping charges

- Choose Linear from the list that is offered in Method.
- In the Percentage or Factor field, enter the factor by which you want to multiply the weight of the order.
- Specify the Base Amount that will be applied to every order.
- Enter the Maximum Amount, beyond which you want to ship goods free of charge.
- Put a check in the Active in Store box to authorise this method of calculating shipping charges for use in your store.

Shipping charges are calculated by this formula:

Total shipping charge = Weight x Factor + Base amount

Example:

Suppose that an order weighs 35 kg, the factor programmed is 2 and the basic shipping charge is EUR 2.50. Then the formula yields a total of EUR 72.50. Because this is over the maximum charge of EUR 40.00, the customer ends up paying only EUR 40.00 in shipping charges.

Cost Finding	
Method:	Linear 💌
Eixed Amount:	10.00
Percentage or Factor:	2.00
<u>C</u> ost Finding Based On:	Weight 🔽
Base Amount:	2.50
Maximum Amount:	40.00
Free <u>o</u> f Charge from Order	700.00
Active in store	
Help	Cancel Apply

Price-based shipping charges

- Choose Linear from the list that is offered in Method.
- In the Percentage or Factor field, enter the percentage which you want to apply to the total value of the order.
- Specify the Base Amount that will be applied to every order.
- Enter the Maximum Amount, beyond which you want to ship goods free of charge.
- If you want to offer free shipping for orders that are over a certain size, specify the Free of Charge from Order size for free shipping.
- Put a check in the Active in Store box to authorise this method of calculating shipping charges for use in your store.

Shipping charges are calculated by this formula:

Total shipping charge = Price x Percentage/100 + Base amount Example:

Suppose that a customer places an order for EUR 1 200.00, the percentage programmed is 2% and the basic shipping charge is EUR 5.00. Then the formula yields a total of EUR 24.00 + 5.00 or EUR 29.00. Total shipping charges for the customer are EUR 29.00.

Cost Finding	
Method:	Linear 💌
Eixed Amount:	10.00
Percentage or Factor:	2.00
Cost Finding Based On:	Price
B <u>a</u> se Amount:	5.00
Maxim <u>u</u> m Amount:	40.00
Free of Charge from Order	700.00
Active in store	
Help	Cancel Apply

Sort your store's inventory into convenient product groups.

Entering product data

If the inventory that your store carries can be divided into types or groups of products, you should start by defining such groups. This has two major advantages: it makes it easier for customers to find what they are looking for, and it simplifies your work in managing the inventory. Two levels of product groups are possible, i.e. groups and sub-groups. Within one group, it is recommended not to have more than seven sub-groups, to make it easier for your customers.

Defining product category

Proceed like this:

• Click on the folder "Product manager", then on the sub-folder "Categories".

The main window will show a message about the new product category to be created.

• Right-click to get the context-sensitive menu and select the command New category.

You will see this dialog window:

New Category		×
General Media		
Category ID: Category Descr.:	12345 home stereos	
Present this cat	gory on the Web	
Help	ОК	Cancel

- Enter the Category ID (unless automatic numbering has been enabled) and Category Description.
- Put a check in the box to authorise the category for use in your store.
- Click on the Media tab card to assign a graphic image to this category.

You will see the following dialog window:

New Category			×
General Media			- 1
Picture:			
Al <u>t</u> -Taç			
<u>W</u> idth:	🔽 Maintain Aspect Ratio		
Height			
Help		ОК	Cancel

- To the right of the text field for Picture, click on the button to browse your computer's folders.
- Change to the folder ...\SmartStore 2000 Express\temp\cat and select the desired graphic file.
- To discard a graphic file that has already been selected, click on the the button, then again on the button to select a new one.

SmartStore 2000 Express allows you to select automatic conversion into one of the standard web formats such as JPG, JPEG and GIF.



Note!

Any graphics that have the wrong format will be automatically converted into an accepted format, depending on the settings you have made in the Tools/Settings menu.

For more information, see the section entitled *Basic* program settings on page 135.

The dialog window will now look something like this:

New Category	×
General Media	1
Picture: Smartstore 2000 Express\temp\cat\Category_Audio.jpg	<u>a</u> a
Alt-Tag Picture for category Audio	ALEIN
Width: 290 Maintain Aspect Ratio	
Height 148	
Help OK	Cancel

• In the Alt-Tag field, type an alternative text tag that should appear if the graphic picture from your store's cannot be displayed for some reason (for example, if the customer has disabled graphics on the browser).



Note!

Choose some clear and evocative name for the alternative text tag, to make sure the customer gets the information even without the graphics.

• Click on OK to finish.

That completes definition of the new product category. The graphic image you have chosen will be displayed on this product category's page. A new folder will appear in the folder list. If you have a large number of different product items in the new category, you may wish to define sub-categories within it, for example under the category "Hi-fi equipment" you may want to distinguish between "Car audio", "Home stereos" and so on.



Note!

If you have defined sub-categories, it is best to have all the store products entered under those sub-categories, and not directly under the category itself, to avoid possible customer confusion. Entering products in quick-entry mode

Once you have set up all your product groups, you can start entering information on the individual products. You can do so in "quickentry mode" with the table shown in the working area of the screen, which allows you to rapidly set up your store on the internet by entering just the minimum information required. Later on, you can complete your inventory with detailed information.

Quick-entry mode is an easy way to enter inventory data quickly.

- In your folder list, go to the lowest level of your product group or sub-group.
- Go to the main window, and in the second cell in the table, click on Item No. and enter the product number.

Categories: 0011 - Car/HiFi					
Folder List X					
Store Setup Sore All Product Manager All Products Unassigned Products Categories Audio Audio Categories Home stereos	Find element Enter wildcards ?) for extended search range.	ts in Category Ca (* or Item no.: Description	1 and 2:	Finc	I now
⊕ ¶edia Manager	Drag a colums header here to group by that column.				
 ■	Item No. △	Description 1	Sales Price	Manufacturer	Display on the
🦾 Web Browser	A				

Note!

If you have enabled automatic numbering, you won't have to do this step; it will be done for you. To customise product numbering, go to the Tools/Settings menu and click on the Number Ranges tab card to specify what kind of automatic numbering you want. (For more information, see the section entitled *Basic program settings* on page 135.)

• Use the tab key to move to the next cell, Description 1, and enter the description of the product.

- Use the tab key to move to the next cell, Sales Price, and enter the price you want to charge for the product.
- Go to the cell called Manufacturer and click to select the correct information from the drop-down lists provided.
- in the next two cells, mark the control boxes for Display on the Web and Top Product, if desired.



Note!

For greater convenience, you can enter frequently used manufacturer names in drop-down lists. Also, use the space bar to toggle the Display on the Web and Top Product settings.

• Once you have selected your settings, press Enter to save the information on that product.

You are now finished with that product, and can carry on entering the basic information on the remaining products in the same way.



Note!

You can also have product information displayed in the form of a flip-card register or a detailed card register. Select the desired display format in the drop-down list in the lower toolbar, like this:



Example of a Card Headers display:



Example of display in Product Cards with Details format:

Item: EtherLink I	III ISA TPO (RJ-45) 100er Pack	Item: Fast EtherLink EISA 1
Description 1:	EtherLink III ISA TPO (RJ	Description 1: Fast Etl
Item No.:	C004612	Item No.: C01811
Sales Price:	39.00	Sales Price:
Manufacturer:		Manufacturer:
Display on the We	eb: 🗹	Display on the Web: 🗹
Top Product:		Top Product:
Item: EtherLink I	III ISA TP (RJ-45 [AUI) 100er P	Item: EtherLink III ISA Com
Description 1:	EtherLink III ISA TP (RJ-4	Description 1: EtherLin
Item No.:	C004705	Item No.: CO2140
Sales Price:	24.00	Sales Price:
Manufacturer:		Manufacturer:

Note that in this display format, you select and edit individual cards.

Using global product folders

For your product inventory administration needs, two special folder views are available: "All Products" and "Unassigned Products".

Using the "All Products" folder

This folder contains a complete list of the products in all your product categories. If you are looking for a particular item and you don't know in which category it is located, you don't have to look in each of the categories individually. Just look once in this folder!

Using the "Unassigned Products" folder

Suppose you want to rapidly enter a large number of new products, and decide later about exactly how you want to catalogue them by categories. This folder allows you to do that; later on, to properly catalogue them in the right categories simply expand the folder list, then drag and drop the new products to the appropriate category.



Notes!

- The "All Products" folder is intended only as a way of displaying the entire inventory in one view, so it does not allow you to move products into other categories by means of drag and drop.
- Products from the "Unassigned Products" folder are not shown in your store catalogue.
- To select a number of different products, hold the Ctrl key down while clicking on each individual product. You can then work with the entire group of selected products, to move them to a different folder, for example. Hold the Shift key down to select a continuous range of products from the list.

Entering detailed product information

Once you have entered your basic inventory information using quick-entry mode, you can start to enter the product details in a separate dialog window.

 In the main window, click on the
 Symbol in the line for the desired product.

🏶 Levis Jeans - 🗆 × 📙 Save and Close 🖳 🔀 🗱 📰 👬 Delete all Variants 🛛 📰 🍳 Font size: (Standard) - 日本 B I U 医唇唇 任任任徒 BR GD 'a 🗟 General Quantity Discounts Variants Long Description Media 30300-0012 Item No.: Description 1: Levis Jeans Levis Jeans, loose fit, stone washed Description 2: 59.00 Buying Price: Quantity Unit: pcs. Tax Rate: 1 • 10.00 1 Surcharge in %: Price Unit: 1 Weight: Sales Price: 64.90 Manufacturer: Time of Delivery: 4 days Min. Order Quantity: 1 Present this product on the Web Promote this product on the home page

You will see the following dialog window displayed:

The dialog window has five tab cards, which you can work on individually. You will find the quick-entry details on the General card, along with some other information.



Note!

You can open and work on several products in different dialog windows at the same time. If you have one window already opened, double-click on a new product's symbol to open it separately.

Entering general product information

• Type the product number in the Item No. field.



If you have selected automatic numbering, a product number will already be showing; you will not be able to change it.

- Type a short name for the product in Description 1.
- Enter a more detailed descriptive name in Description 2.
- Type in the product's purchase price (in units of the defined currency) in Buying Price. (This is the price paid for a full Purchase lot, see below.)
- If applicable, specify the Surcharge in %.



Note!

If you use Surcharge in %, then the sales price will be calculated automatically and you will not need to worry about calculating it in the future, as long as the buying price is up to date.

- If you are not using automatic markup, enter the product's Sales Price.
- Specify the Min. Order Quantity that may be ordered, in Minimum order size. Orders for a smaller number of this product will not be accepted.
- Specify the units for ordering this product. Click once in the Quantity Unit field, then on the ... button.

A dialog window will open. Select one of the existing suggestions for units, or enter your own in the entry line. This allows you to specify the units without having to leave the detailed product information window and opening a separate folder.

- In Price Unit, enter the number of items which corresponds to the Buying price above. This information is used to calculate the unit retail price, as opposed to the lot buying price.
- Under Manufacturer, select the number of the manufacturer. The name will be displayed automatically to the right of the number.

- In Time of Delivery enter the expected delivery time in days.
- Select the applicable Tax Rate from the Tax rate drop-down list.
- Enter the product's unit weight under Weight. This will be used to calculate weight-based shipping charges.
- Put a check in Present this product on the Web to have this product go into the on-line inventory.
- Check in Promote this product on the home page to have this product go into your entry page promotions.
- Click on the tab for the next card: Quantity Discounts.

Defining Quantity discounts

Use this card to define what type of quantity discounts you want to offer.

🖗 Levis Jeans 📃 🗌 🗙			
🔚 Save and Close 🛛 🖳 🗙 🐮 💳 🕹 📰 Delete all Variants 🛛 💳 🛛 😰			
Font size: (Standard) - T _a - B Z U 画 画 画 語 語 語 译 译 BR @ 💽			
General Quantity Disco	unts Variants Long Desc	ription Media	
From (amount)	Discount Type	Discount Value	Active in the store
5	Discount %	5.00	
10	Discount %	7.50	
20	Special Price	50.00	
50	Special Price	45.00	
		¢	
	- -	- -	*

- In the entry line, enter the minimum volume of a customer's order to qualify for the quantity discount in From (amount).
- Make your selection in Discount Type and enter the Discount value in Reduction.
- Check the Active in the store box to activate this discount for store use.
- Click on the tab for the next card: Variants.
Defining variants

You can define various variants for a single product, such as colour, size or alternative designs, without having to define a new product for each variant. With SmartStore 2000 Express, once you have defined one product, you can simply define what variants are available for that product, making it much easier to keep track of your inventory.

Example:

Let us suppose that you want to sell a jacket in three different colours and sizes. If you had to carry them each as a separate product, you would have to make nine different entries. Using product variants, you simply define the two types of variants and the program will take care of the rest. When your customers visit the store, they will be able to select the desired "size" and "colour" from two drop-down lists. This is an important time-saver for you, especially for products that exist in many variations.

Notice that the toolbar now features a new group of buttons. Their functions are as follows:

	Define a new variant
=	Edit an existing variant
¥:	Delete all variant
Ħ	Define standard

Defining new variants

New variants are defined in the Variants tab card. When you first click on this card, it will be blank. You must first define the variant type (e.g. colour, size) and then specify the available variants (e.g. green, blue, M, L, XL and so on).

• On the toolbar, click on the 🔤 button.

The following dialog window will appear:

Create Variants		×				
Variant Types 🛅 🗃 🗙	Variant values 🛅 😭 🗙					
Color 5ize	Beige Blue	Cre <u>a</u> te Variant Type				
	Yellow Green Pink Purple Red Black White	Cancel				
Options for item number						
Variants do not have item numbers						
C Variants have their own item numbers						
Separators:						

The symbols appearing above the two windows have the following meanings:

<u>*</u> 1225	Create a new variant type and variant values respectively
	Edit an existing variant type and variant values respectively
X	Delete an existing variant type and variant values respectively

Some of the more commonly used variant types (such as "colour") already have some available variant pre-defined (e.g. "blue", "yel-low", "green").

• In the left window, click on the desired Variant Types, then select the Variant values from those available in the right window.

Create ¥ariants		x
Variant Types	Variant values	
Color	Beige	Cre <u>a</u> te Variant Type
L Size	 ✓ Blue Yellow ✓ Green Pink Purple ✓ Red ✓ Black White 	Cancel
Options for item number		
 Variants do not have item 		
C Variants have their own its Separators:	em numbers	

Create Variants		×
Variant Types Image: Image:	Variant values	Cre <u>a</u> te Variant Type Cancel
Options for item number Variants do not have item Variants have their own ite Separators:	numbers m numbers	

• Continue in the same way to define a new Variant type.

You can have a separate product number assigned automatically for each new variant.



Caution!

If you define the variants without assigning separate product numbers, this may have unexpected results. Thus, if a customer orders two items of the same product but with different variants, the first item will be overwritten by the second!

• Select the Separator character in the bottom part of the screen.

Create ¥ariants		×
Variant Types Im Im X ✓ Color ✓ Size	Variant values	Cre <u>a</u> te Variant Type
	XL XXL	
Options for item number		
C Variants do not have item		
Variants have their own its Separators:	em numbers	

• Click on the Create Variant Type button to create the new variant.

When you have done this, you will see the variants displayed on the card, something like this:

🔜 Save and Close 🛛 🖉 📉 💥 🚥 🗱 Delete all Variants 📰 📿							
ont size; (Stand	ard) ▼ T _∎ ▼ B .			Define	新聞 RR GS as default	r 🌆 🖻	
ieneral 🛛 Quantity	Discounts Variants	Long Description	Media	Donno			
ltem no.	Description 2	Description 1	Price	Weight	No variants	Active	
30300-0012-1	Levis Jeans, loose fi	. Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Black\M	✓	
30300-0012-2	Levis Jeans, loose fi	. Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Black\S		
30300-0012-3	Levis Jeans, loose fi	. Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Black\XL		
30300-0012-4	Levis Jeans, loose.	Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Blue∖M		
30300-0012-5	Levis Jeans, loose fi	. Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Blue\S		
30300-0012-6	Levis Jeans, loose fi	. Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Blue\XL		
30300-0012-7	Levis Jeans, loose fi	. Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Green\M		
30300-0012-8	Levis Jeans, loose fi	. Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Green\S		
30300-0012-9	Levis Jeans, loose fi	. Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Green\XL		
30300-0012-10	Levis Jeans, loose fi	. Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Red\M		
30300-0012-11	Levis Jeans, loose fi	. Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Red\S		
30300-0012-12	Levis Jeans, loose fi	. Levis Jeans	64.90	1.00	Red\XL		

This card allows you to manage your product options in a number of ways. You can:

- change the Item no. (if you have selected automatic numbering, you will be able to change only the part after the separator character),
- change the text information in Description 1 and Description 2,
- change the Price for each separate variant,
- remove the check in the Active box if a given variant is temporarily unavailable, and
- click on the standard, which will be offered by default in your store.

When you are finished editing the variants and product details, save your changes by clicking on the Esave and Close button. Click on the Esave button if you want to continue working with the other tab cards.

• Click on the tab for the next card: Long Description.

Long description of products

You may want to offer your customers detailed information about your products, especially products of a technical nature. The Long Description tab card allows you to create as long a text as you like, formatted for depiction in your store by means of the included HTML editor.

Here is what a typical long description might look like:



The lower toolbar provides you with basic HTML tags, the most important of which are explained in the table below.

T _{2≣} -	Change colour text
BR	Insert line break
8	Insert hyperlink
₽ ®®	Insert picture
B	Preview using integrated browser

The remaining buttons on this toolbar should be familiar to you from your work with standard word processor software. If in doubt, just poise the mouse pointer on a button, and a tip will be displayed. You are of course free to use other HTML tags in addition to these standard tags. To preview it, click on the the button. The preview will always be in the page layout which you have selected in the template folder.

You can also use HTML code to enter audio or video files, or PDF files in your detailed description. Your customers will be able to consult these files when they look at this product.

Here is a typical example:



Product graphics

The last card, Media, is used to assign graphics that will be displayed next to the product in the catalogue.

🏶 AIWA NSX VB
🔚 Save and Close 🛛 🖳 🗡 🗮 💳 🛛 🏭 Delete all Variants 🛛 🗮 🛛 😨
Font size: 7 (36 pt) 🔹 🖪 🖌 😗 📄 冨 冨 冨 冨 冨 冨 冨 🛱 🛱 🕼 🕯 🔭 💽
General Quantity Discounts Variants Long Description Media
Thumbnail
Picture: Smartstore 2000 Express\temp\thumb\aiwansxvb.jpg
Alt-Tag
Width: 56 🔽 Maintain Aspect Ratio
Height 80
Product Picture
Picture: Smartstore 2000 Express\temp\big\aiwansxvb.jpg
Alt-Tag:
Width: 290 🔽 Maintain Aspect Ratio
Height: 148
,,

- In the upper part, select the graphics file you want to use for the Thumbnail picture next to the product.
- Click on the button to the right of the Picture line to browse for the file.
- Go to the directory ...\SmartStore 2000 Express\temp\thumb and select the desired thumbnail graphics file.
- You can reject the graphics file again, by clicking on the ton, and click on the button to select a new one.
- Type an alternative name (or 'tag') in the Alt-Tag field. It will be displayed if the graphics file cannot be displayed for some reason (e.g. if the customer has disabled graphics for his or her browser).

- In the lower half, Product Picture, specify the detailed picture you want displayed when a customer double-clicks on the thumbnail.
- To do this, first click on the k button to the right of the Picture line to browse for the file.
- Go to the directory ...\SmartStore 2000 Express\temp\big and select the desired graphics file.
- You can reject the graphics file again, by clicking on the button, and click on the button to select a new one.



Note!

You should choose suitable graphics for the thumbnail and the detailed view of the individual products. For example, if you create a thumbnail based on a full view of a pointer, even though the detailed picture is very good, in the thumbnail the details will be lost and the picture will be meaningless. In such a case it may be better to base the thumbnail on a partial view of the product. Remember that high-quality pictures can contribute a lot to the success of your store.

• When you have finished working on the detailed product information, click on the Save and close button to save your changes and close the dialog window.

Managing product illustrations

The "Media Manager" is a useful tool for managing graphics for the illustrations in your catalogue. The graphics can be stored by subject in sub-folders. The main window shows the complete list of graphics files in the folder currently selected.

Product Thumbnails								
Folder List	×	Name	Size	Туре		Changed on	In use	
Store Store Media Manager Media Manager Media Manager Product Thumbnails Product Thumbnails Categories Categories Categories User-defined Design Orders Web Browser	2	readme.jpg test.bmp	3 KB 576 KB	Ulead PhotoImpac	t Image tt Image	8/4/2000 5:40:43 PM 8/4/2000 8:17:40 PM	Yes Yes	
2 Files, 0 Orphaned						209x77	🕼 Meine	

- 'Orphaned' graphics files which are not currently assigned are displayed in blue for easy identification, in case you want to delete them. They are also marked with a "No" in the In use column.
- The "User-defined" folder is intended for your own media files. Use it to store all media files you want to use in the store, such as audio or video files, PDF files and so on.
- You can find out which product a graphics file is currently assigned to, and change this assignment if desired. Proceed as follows:

• Double click on the if button to find out what product is associated with:

Thumbnail X
General Image Attributes
In use by:
Item (No.: 40202-0001 Descr: AIWA NSX-AV720Pro 🌂
Path Contract Contrac
C:\Program Files\SmartStore\SmartStore 2000 Expr
Help OK Cancel

The In use by field will tell you which product is currently using the thumbnail, and the Path field will show the complete path for the thumbnail.

• To remove the graphics file from the product's description, click on the 🔀 button.

The Image attributes card allows you to type an alternative text tag in case the picture cannot be displayed for some reason (e.g. browser graphics disabled).

Thumbnail	×
General Image Attributes	
Alt-Tag Picture of AlWA NSX-AV 720 Pro	to front and
Width 217 Waintain aspect ratio	8 <u></u> 2'''
Height 80	
Неір ОК	Cancel

You can also change the size of the thumbnail, if desired.

Note!

• To avoid distorting the image proportions, check the box for Maintain aspect ratio.

In this way, if you change the Width of a picture, for example, the Height will be automatically adjusted.



You should keep the same size for all pictures of one category (i.e. thumbnails or detailed pictures) to give your catalogue an attractive and organised look. This can be easily done in the Tools/Settings menu, by clicking on the tab card Convert Graphics and selecting the option to automatically convert all thumbnails to the same size (see also page 136).

Configuring your store

Once you have set up the inventory of your store, you can set up the configuration of your store. To do this, you must go to the folder entitled "Template manager".

The template manager in turn contains four sub-folders:



The subjects contained here are displayed using the folder list and the main window, as you have already seen for the "Setup" folder.

Meta tags

Meta tags contain information and key words that will make it easier for search machines on the Internet to find and classify your store.



Caution!

This information should be very carefully selected, because it can play a vital role in helping potential customers find your store.

• Click on the "Meta tags" folder.

The main window will show three subjects:

- Store description,
- Key words, and
- Target group

Entering store description

If you are selling office supplies, you might write

"A full range of office supplies, from paper clips to office furniture"

• In the main window, double-click on the 📑 button next to the first subject and enter your description.

The next subject is for key words that describe your product range.

Entering key words

Suppose a potential customer is looking for copy holders. Typically, search machines will turn up your store if you have entered "copy holders" among the key words for your store's site. The customer then only needs to click on that search machine result to find your store.

Enter the names of the products you are selling as key words.

• Go to the "Key words" subject and type in all the appropriate key words.

Entering target group

Although not all search machines use this meta tag, it can nonetheless be an important criterion to help find your store, especially if the search result shows a large number of entries.

For example, if you are a dealer specialised in gardening books, you can enter "For hobby gardeners", "For gardeners".

• Go to the "Target group" subject and type in your customer target group.

Configuration

This folder is for the actual configuration of your store. It contains five sub-folders:

- options
- catalogue features
- secondary currency, price ticketing, tax region, ordering and payment methods
- security protocol option



Proceed in the same way as you have done for earlier folders:

- Click to open a subject sub-folder.
- Double-click to open a subject in the main window, then make your changes.

The dialog windows provide short explanatory texts to help you in configuring the store.

Selecting primary currency

In the "Finance" folder you can specify the currency in which you want your store prices to be displayed on-line. This is independent of the internal store currency you specified earlier, which you used when entering the product prices. The primary currency can be any one of the currencies you have in your currency table.

Finance				
Folder List	х	Attribute	Value	Description
🖃 📲 🕄 Store		Primary currency in the store	USD	Specifies the currency used in the
🗄 🚡 Setup		✓ Display secondary currency	Yes	Specifies whether an alternative cu
😟 🧐 Product Manager		(ab) Separator between primary and seco	8nbsp;	
🕂 📲 Media Manager		Secondary Currency	EUR	Specifies which currency will be dis
🖃 🕼 Template Manager		Gross Prices	Yes	Specifies that prices are inclusive o
- 🦓 Meta Tags		E Default Tax Area	AB	Specifies the preset tax area that
📄 👘 Configuration		Default Mode of Payment	Collect on delivery	Specifies the preset mode of paym
💮 🚸 General			,	
Catalog				
Finance				
🛛 🖉 Ordering				
Security				

- Double-click on the E button next to "Primary currency in the store".
- In the dialog window that will be displayed, select the desired national currency.

Selecting and displaying secondary currency

In addition to the primary currency, you may wish to have prices displayed in a second currency as well. This should be one of the more widely used global currencies, which will help the customer to make a price comparison.

- Double-click on the "Secondary Currency" subject and select the desired currency.
- Double-click on the 📑 button next to "Display secondary currency" and put a check in the box.

Selecting default tax area

You can specify a default tax area which will be automatically suggested to your on-line customers. Customers who belong to that area will not have to search through the list.

For more information on tax areas, refer to the section beginning on page 45.

- Double click on the solution next to "Default Tax Area".
- From the dialog window that will be displayed, select the tax area which you believe will apply to most of your customers.

Selecting default mode of payment

You can select from the list of modes of payment one which will be automatically suggested to your customers as the default.

- Double-click on the E button next to "Default Mode of Payment".
- From the dialog window, select the mode of payment which you want to suggest by default.

Designing customer forms

Use the administration sub-folder "Forms" to customise three forms which you will ask your customers to fill out. You can designate

- mandatory form fields,
- types of field (text, numbers, e-mail address), and
- minimum and maximum field length.



For example, in the "Billing Address" form you may wish to make the "Zip code" field mandatory; if you know that your customers are always from the USA or Germany, you can also specify that the postal code should be a five-digit number. In addition, you can define error messages which will be displayed to the customer if the form information supplied is wrong. Here is an example:

Billing Address	x
General	
123 'Zip code' field	
I Required Field	
Check Validity	
Min. Character Length 5 -	
Message for invalid content:	
The form is incomplete. Please enter your valid 'Zip code'.	
OK Cancel Apply	

• Open each of the three customer forms in turn and specify the information you want the customer to supply.

Editing Descriptive store texts

Use this sub-folder to view and edit all of the texts which are displayed in your virtual store. You can produce your own texts, in the desired style and language, to communicate with your target group of customers.



Proceed in the normal way to edit the texts:

• Double click on the entry and edit the text when it is displayed.

Designing store layout

Now that you have entered all the content, you can determine the appearance and layout of your store. The choice of a store layout should, once again, reflect your desired target group.

Selecting predefined page layout

SmartStore 2000 Express includes a "design" folder that contains different types of page layout, designed and ready for use. It is also possible to modify the existing design templates to meet your own needs.

• In the upper toolbar, click on the grassing button.

You will see this dialog window:

🍞 Designs						
19 X 19 19	Pre <u>v</u> iew:					
Current Designs BubbleGum Business Classia	Companyogo					
Classic DarkAges Earl Grey Fact Fun	Quick Search	Page Heading				
Jeans Lemon Logic Meine	(#the Go!	Default Paragraph Formatting				
Modern Moon Nature Newstyle OS Peppermint PowerBlack Simple Standard	<u>Category 1</u> <u>Active Category</u> Subcategory	Category: Category Description Subcategory 1 (24)				
	 <u>Subcategory</u> <u>Subcategory</u> <u>Subcategory</u> <u>Subcategory</u> Subcategory 	Subcategory 2 (48) Subcategory 3 (124)				
loys	Category 3	Description 1 Description 2 US\$299.50				
Button Style:		32 W1 Add to Cart				
Help		Description 1 ▼ OK Cancel Apply				

- Select a design file from the list presented. Note the Preview in the right part of the window.
- In the Button style section, select the desired button style (Graphical or Textual).

The group of buttons located above the design template list has the following functions:



	Create new design template You can create a new design template on the basis of an existing one. This allows you to experiment with different styles without changing the original.
r in the second s	Rename the selected design template file
×	Delete the selected design template file
	Import a design template file (*.stf file)
Ì	Export a design template file (*.stf file)



Caution! Danger of data loss! If you want to work on a design template file, always first make a copy of it, saved under a different name. Use the the button to create a new design template.

• Click on OK to confirm.

Creating a new design template file

Before you start changing a design template, you must first create the new file on the basis of the existing one:

Click on the the button to create a new design template file.

You will see this dialog window:

New Design Te	mplate X
<u>T</u> emplate Name	: Xmas
<u>A</u> uthor:	John Miller
<u>C</u> ategory:	Modern
De <u>s</u> cription:	Special templ
Generate fr	om existing <u>D</u> esign OK Cancel

• Type in the file name for the new design template and put a check in the box.

The dialog window will be expanded, like this:

New Design T	emplate	×
<u>T</u> emplate Name	: Xmas	ĺ
<u>A</u> uthor:	John Miller	1
Category:	Modern	1
Description:	Special template for the Christmas week	1
	·	
🔽 Generate fr	om existing Design	
BubbleGum Business		
Classic DarkAges		
Fact	_	
Jeans		
Logic Meine	•	
		1
	OK Cancel	

• Select the template on which you want to base your new design template and click on OK.

You can now make any changes you like in the new design template file, while leaving the original template untouched.

Adjusting language of design template to store language

The language of a design template may differ from the current used language in your store. If you want to create a new design template based on an existing one, which language differs from the current store language, you will see the following dialog window:

Select store language	×				
The design template, which the template you are creating is based on, does not include the store language, you are currently using. Choose a store language from the standard template or the language you are					
 Create a new design template based on one of the store languages in the standard template. 					
Note: This option also creates the language specific and design-neutral graphics of the currently used store language.					
German]				
C Create new design template based on the currently used store language. Store language used: English (US).					

- Check the first option field to create the new template based on the language of the existing template, or
- check the second option field to create the new template in the currently used store language.
- Save your setting by clicking on OK.

Preview of design templates

The preview of design templates is only available in the currently used store language. Otherwise the button language will differ from the language of the store site. If the template is not available in the currently used store language, you will see the following dialog window:

Designs	×
Current Designs Current Designs Fact Fun Jeans Lemon Logic Modern Moon Nature Newstyle OS Peppermint Image: Style: Image: Graphical Image: Textual	Pre <u>v</u> iew: This design template is not available in the store language you are using: German. Do you want to add the store language 'German' to this template? Yes, add language
Help	OK Cancel Apply

• Click on Yes, add language to add the displayed language to the design template.

Exporting design templates

• Click on the 🗎 button to export a template.

You will see this dialog window:

Export Templat	e	×
Name of template	New template]
<u>S</u> ave as:	ORE 2000 EXPRESS\Ressources\Styles\Earl Grey.st	3
	OK Cance	:

- Enter the target path and name of the design template you want to export (type in the *.stf suffix) or
- click on a to set the target path for the template you want to save.
- Confirm your settings by cklicking on OK.

Importing design templates

- Click on the 🛅 button to import a template.
- Choose the file path and template file (suffix *.stf) from the dialog window.



Note!

You can only import design templates if the corresponding store language is available. Install the required language if necessary.

• Mark the filename and click on OK.

Elements of the web page

In the "Design" folder, you can make your own detailed design of a web page. The sub-folders, from "Title bar" to "Status line", refer to different parts of a web page, as shown below:



Customising layout

You can customise any template file found in the "Design" folder.





Note!

The template files provided are professionally designed and are sufficient to cover a wide range of possibilities for your store's design.

The subjects you will find in the "Design" folder concern all aspects of your virtual store, such as button design, input fields, links, dropdown lists, and all texts and headings. You can customise the design of each individual element of every page for your own purposes.

To change any design element in the current template file, simply double click on its entry in the list. The folders contain recurring list elements that use the same dialog windows. Instructions and tips are provided to explain each part of the list. Design tools

The table below explains the symbols you will see in the "Design" folder:

°	Select buttons and symbols, spacing and borders
۲	Define general properties of web page element
8	Design link entries
Ļ	Define cell properties for table
	Define properties for selected text or numerical information
Ƕ	Define paragraph properties
	Design page navigation elements
abl	Design input fields for forms
	Design long text fields in forms
	Design drop-down lists in forms
l.	Design buttons in forms

Example: font formats

Page Headings								
Folder List	c Dia	alog for		Description				
⊡ 🔣 Store	· ^ <u>A</u>	Format Font		Specifying for	nt type, colo	r, size, style,	decoration, weight,	etc.
🗄 📸 Setup		Spacing, margins, and o	rientation	Specifying ou	tside spacing	, orientation,	indentation and line	e height
🕀 🧐 Product Manager		Border		Specifying border type, style, dimensions and color				
🕀 📲 Media Manager		Inside Spacing		Specifying distance of text to the margin of the element				
🕀 🐨 🕼 Template Manager		Background Colors and I	Pictures	Specifying ba	ckground col	or, picture, p	icture position etc.	
	145	Paragraph Attributes		Edits the HTM	1L attributes	of the selecte	d element (store mu	ust be cre
H Basic Layout		Farmer & Farab						V
E Cogo Bar		Format Font						~ ~
E Catalog Bar		Type:	Tahoma					-
Body			1					
E-Ceperal		<u>S</u> ize:	15	Points	-	<u>W</u> eight:	Normal	-
= Lists		<u>S</u> tyle:	🖌 Normal	-		<u>V</u> ariant:	🖌 Normal	-
							-	
		Character spacing:		Points	-	<u>C</u> olor:	#004080	<u></u>
Images								
Homepage		Decoration:	✓ None		–			
😟 💼 Product Overview		T						
😟 💼 Product Detail		Iransformation:	✓ None		–			
E								
					ОК	Can	cel Ap <u>p</u> ly	
⊡ Customer Data Regi:				_				-12

- To format the page header, go to "Design/Body/General/Page Headings".
- In the working area, double-click on the <u>A</u> button next to "Format Font".

You will see the dialog window "Format Font" displayed.

• Specify your desired format and click on OK to finish.

The dialog window consists mainly of options you can select from drop-down lists, by clicking on the value button. The "Images" folder allows you to replace graphics elements used in the current template with new ones. "Basic Layout" refers to general layout options such as background colour, standard font, link depiction etc., which apply to all parts of the store.



Caution! Remember that any changes you make in the folder "Basic Layout" will affect every page of your store.

Browser compatibility

When you are designing your store's layout, remember that your customers will be using different web browsers. SmartStore 2000 Express allows you to specify the desired browser capability in a drop-down list on the lower toolbar when you are in the "Design" folder.



Note!

While designing your store, you probably previewed it using one particular browser. It is strongly recommended to preview it with more than one browser before making it accessible on the web. Typically you will discover that the layout needs to be adapted to make it work properly.

If you select Netscape 3, you will see that most of the options in the layout design folders are no longer available: only the ones that are displayed in blue can still be used. This is because Netscape 3 does not cascading style sheets (CSS), but only simplified formatting with HTML attributes. The advantage of this is that it will work on any browser, giving you the widest possible compatibility.



Note! If you modify any of the settings or graphics displayed in blue, you will have to generate the complete store again in order to make the changes visible. Changes to settings displayed in black may be saved by clicking on the Assign Design button, and inspected by previewing just the pages in question. If you wish to view the CSS source code of the format template, click on the source button.

If the majority of your potential customers is likely to be using more up to date browsers, you can select an appropriately advanced browser from the capability list. This will allow you more scope in designing your store.

Previewing one or more pages

SmartStore 2000 Express allows you to preview one or more pages, allowing you to inspect the results of your work as you are designing or modifying parts of your store.

Suppose that you have just changed part of the template on which your store is based, and want to see what the effect will be on the finished web page. In that case you can select a group of products with a few articles, with which a preview will be generated. In this way you can verify that the changes you have made are what you intended, without having to generate the store from scratch.

- Click on the Review in Browser... button in the upper toolbar.
- You will see the following dialog window:

Sto	re Preview		×
0	Only Generate Homepage		_
	Select this option if you have changed the frame of the catalog		
•	Generate Entire Store		
	Select categories that will be available in the preview. Then limit the maximum num created.	ber of products to be	
	Max. number of products per category:		
	Categories:		
	E-Categories	Open preview in:	-
	Home stereos	Create Pre <u>v</u> iew	
		⊆lose	1
		Help	

- Select one of the options Only Generate Homepage only or Generate Entire Store.
- Specify the maximum number of products to be displayed and the browser type to be used.
- Check the pages for which you wish to generate a preview.

• Click on Create Preview.

The preview will now be displayed using the desired browser type. To compare it with the existing store, change to your internal preview browser and click on the button Last Store Generated. You will see the existing store as it appears, without the new changes you have made.

Comparing different versions of your store

In the "Web Browser" folder, you can display different versions of your store for comparison.



- Put a check in the control box to display the store in an external browser.
- Click on one of the blue buttons to display that store version using the preselected browser.

Generating your store

Having completed the steps described in this chapter, you are now ready to preview your entire store. This will allow you to "test-drive" it off-line using a browser of your choice.

• Click on the Screate Store button in the top toolbar.

You will see the following dialog window:

Treate Store	×
Staging Creating Store	۲
Overall Status:	Ī
Preparing procedure Building basic page layout Building master script Building script for 'catalog navigation bar' Building 'homepage' Building category 'Audio' Building category 'Audio' Building category 'Home stereos' Building category 'Home stereos'	
Open Store in	cel

Progress in generating the store is indicated as the blue bar fills in on the screen.

Once the store has been generated, click on the Open store in button to enter it with the desired browser. You can now view your store and test its functions to verify that it looks and operates as you intended.

Exploring your store

When a potential customer enters your store through the browser, he or she will typically land on the home page, which is your "front door".

Navigating through the store

Customers can browse through your store using the shortcut bar and the embedded links.


Shortcut bar

The shortcut bar is always positioned in the same place, regardless of the page on which the visitor is located. There are also specific function buttons on each page, all designed along similar lines. The Home button always returns the visitor to the home page.

Your store's links

Links are depicted in dark blue and underlined, and you should not To help your store visitors change this, as it is universal practice. The most important links are gathered under "Complete catalogue" in the catalogue bar. De- should respect standard pending on the configuration, this will show all of the product groups or only the main product groups.

browse in comfort, you practice for web page design.

Clicking on a product group opens the catalogue for that group, showing the visitor any sub-groups within that group, along with an indication of the number of products it contains. Here is an example:



Clicking again, on one of the sub-groups, allows the visitor to see all of the products it contains. For more information on a product, the visitor clicks on the thumbnail or on the product name.

Promotional products

At the heart of your home page are located the promotional products you defined in the product manager ("Top Product").

Our top products	
	AIWA NSX-AV720Pro
	USD125.00
	EUR 115,25
	📜 Add to Cart more
	Sony MHC-RX 77
The Restances	USD189.00
	EUR 174,20
	🐂 Add to Cart 👘 more

To get additional information on one of the products, the visitor can click on any of these:

- the picture of the product,
- the name of the product, or
- the link shown as more...

When a visitor decides to buy a product, he or she clicks on Add to Cart.

Making an order

After deciding on one or more articles to buy, the visitor can make an order.

Order form

The customer goes to "Order form", where the articles previously selected are listed.

🖾 Home 💋	Orderform 🛛 🏘 Search 🛛 🕮 Con	tact 🗎 🗈 Terms o	f Use				
S Continue Shopping							
Order fo	orm						
Your order form shows all the items you marked while you were 'strolling' through our shop. You can change the kind and amount of an item here at any time, or delete items or even the entire order form. Use the Checkout button to submit your order now. Checkout button to submit your order now.							
Item no.	Description	Options	[Discount USD	Unit price USD	Amount	Total USD
40101-0001	AIWA NSX-AV720	No Variants:	1	0.00	849.00	1	849.00
40101-0005	Pioneer PRT 400	No Variants:	۲	0.00	649.00	1	649.00
40103-0002	<u>Fuji Fotonex 3500ix</u> Zoom MRC	No Variants:	8	0.00	399.00	1	399.00
					Subto	tal USD	1,897.00
					Alternat	ive EUR	1.749,10
			\$	Recalculate	朡 Delete Cart		eckout >>

The customer can then

- change the quantity of a product,
- remove a product from the order by clicking on the recycle bin symbol,
- review the product information by clicking on the name of the product,
- verify prices and the order total, or
- return to the catalogue to continue shopping.

Customer information form

When ready to place the complete order, the customer clicks on the button labelled Checkout. This takes him or her to the page where customer details are required. The customer should fill in as much as possible of the information requested, so that the order can be filled without the need to ask for additional information. Mandatory information is specially indicated; if any of this is missing, it will not be possible to fill the order.

Choosing shipping method

When the customer has given the shipping address, a click on Next takes him or her to the page where a choice of shipping method must be indicated.

```
🖾 Home 🛛 🖗 Orderform 🛛 🏘 Search 🕮 Contact 🔳 Terms of Use
```

Select the desired shipping method

Select the desired shipping method here. Click the corresponding button on the left.

	Shipping method	Description	Price
C	Hermes	Hermes Parcel Service	USD 2.00
c	UPS	United Parcel Service	USD 0.00
<	Back Next >		

In the column on the right-hand side you will find the price of the shipping method.

• Click on Next to select the mode of payment.

Choosing mode of payment

On this page you have to choose a mode of payment. If "Credit card" is selected, additional information will have to be supplied. The fees for the different modes of payment are displayed in the column on the right-hand side. When finished, click on Next again.

🖾 Home 🛛 🖗 Orderform 🛛 🚧 Sear	h 🕮 Contact 🖹 Terms of Use
-------------------------------	----------------------------

Select the mode of payment

Select the desired mode of payment. Click the corresponding button on the left.

Description		Description	Fee
• American Express			USD 3.00
C Cash on delivery			USD 10.00
C Payment by invoice)		USD 0.00
C Credit card			USD 0.00
Credit card	American Ex-	Card number	
Valid until		• Cardholder	
<pre></pre>			

Checking the order

The customer can review all of the order data and personal information on the page "Please check your order". After this, he or she only needs to click on Process order - and you have got a new customer!



	Order form					
Item no.	Description	Options	Discount	Unit price	Amount	Total
40202-0001	AIWA NSX-AV720Pro	No Variants:	0.00	125.00	1	125.00
40202-0002	Sony MHC-RX 77		0.00	189.00	1	189.00
40202-0003	Philips AS 680C		0.00	215.00	1	215.00

Subtotal USD 529.00

Shipping costs USD 10.00

Mode of payment fees USD 10.00

Included VAT USD 35.91

Final amount USD 549.00

Alternative EUR 506,20



Note!

Depending on the tax region, the order total may be different from the sales price information given in the catalogue.

When the customer clicks on Process order, SmartStore 2000 Express sets up an internet connection to send the order off by e-mail. When the message is successfully sent, the order has been placed.

Searching the store

The home page of your store includes two powerful search functions for customers' use.

Quick search

A store visitor can enter a search term in the Quick Search box above the catalogue bar. This will search the entire catalogue for the term, which may be an article name, a manufacturer's name, etc. The results are then shown on the "Power search" page.

📗 🖾 Home 🔗	Orderform 🛛 🏘 Search	h 🕮 Contact 🗎	ferms of Use		
Power s	earch				
lt is easy to	search here for info	rmation on the desire	ed item. If desired, you	u can also limit the	search
according to	price!		-		
Search for	All	Search term		Max. price	#4 Go!
	by name				
Reack	Item no. ''' by manufacturer				

Power search

For a more refined search, a store visitor can click on the Power search link in the column "Inside shop". The "Power search" page offers a number of categories in a drop-down list (Search for...), in which the specified Search term will be sought. It is possible also to specify a Max. price for the desired product. A click on Go! starts the search, whose results are displayed in a list that the customer can choose from.

Contacting the store

A store visitor who wishes to contact you needs to click on the Dialog link in the "Inside shop" column. The dialog page allows him or her to write to various contacts in your store by e-mail or by filling in a form. In the same column the store's "general terms and conditions of business" GTB are made public. Finally, at the bottom of the column are located three "mail to:" links that call up the customer's own e-mail program to write to the appropriate address.

Putting your store on the internet

Once you have finished your "test drive" of your store using an offline browser and are happy with its appearance and operation, you are ready to put it on the internet.

• Click on the genetist store button in the upper toolbar.

The appropriate assistant window will come up, looking like this:

📸 Wizard for Publishing		×
Publish Store Wizard for publishing the store		١
This wizard lets you publish the sl intranet. You can select the targe not defined a target host, and yo store will be published.	tore you generated on the Web or on et host or enter your access data in c ou can decide whether only updates fi	i the local ase you have iles or the entire
To continue, click Next		
Help	< Back	

• Click on Next to proceed.

The next assistant window will be displayed:

📸 Wizard for Publishing			×
Publish Store Select a host or add one.			<u></u>
Select the target host from the li: type of target host: Local or rem To edit an existing target host cli	st below with a simp ote resource. Click ' ck 'Edit'.	le click. The symbo Add' to insert a ner	ls refer to the w target host.
Target Hosts:			Add Edit Bemove
Resource: Target:			
Help	< <u>B</u> ack	Next >	⊆lose

• Click on Add.

The next assistant window will be displayed, with three tab cards:

ñ	Settings		x
E	Basic Settings Ad	vanced Firewall	
	Profile Name:	Remote	
	🕞 Remote		
	<u>H</u> ost:	MyDomain.com	
	<u>S</u> tart Folder:	MyStore	
	<u>U</u> ser Name:	Miller	
	Password:	*****	
		Anonymous Acess 🔽 Save Password	
	HTTP-URL:		
	- C Local		
	<u>P</u> ath:		
	Help	OK Cancel Apply	



Note!

You will need to contact your ISP to get the information that is needed to fill in these forms, because the information depends on the ISP's system configuration.

• After entering the necessary information, click on OK.

You will be returned to the assistant, with this window:

🗟 Wizard for Publish	ing			x
Publish Store Select a host o	r add one.			<u>()</u>
Select the targ type of target To edit an exisi	et host from the list host: Local or remot ing target host click	below with a simpl e resource. Click 'A 'Edit'.	e click. The symt Add' to insert a r	ools refer to the new target host.
Target Hosts:				Add Edit
, Resource: Target:	Remote MyDomain.com			
Help		< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >	⊆lose

• Select the Target Host and click on Next.

📸 Wizard	for Publishing	×
Publish Sel	Store ect a publication type	٢
De	cide whether the entire store or only updated files will be published.	
c	Transfer Entire Store	
	Transfers all store files generated during the last stage procedure (product categories, products, graphics, scripts and other media)	
0	Transfer Only Updated Files	
	Transfers only files that were updated or added since the last transfer to the target host you just selected.	
Help	< Back Next >	ose

• Select the option desired and click on Next.

• In the final window, click on Complete.

The connection will now be established, after which your store data will be transferred to the server of your ISP.

Wizard for Publishing		
Publish Store Complete publication		٢
Click 'Finish' to begin transferring	your store. To cancel the transfer, click 'Cancel'.	
	٢	
Connecting FTP server Connection was successful Files are being analyzed Transferring index.html Transferring assets/bigkeadme Transferring assets/bigkeadme Transferring assets/bigkeadme	jpg P SY.jpg	
Help	< Back Complete	ancel

When this step is completed, your completed store is on the internet and open for business.

Other important program features

This chapter describes a few other important features of Smart-Store 2000 Express, such as performing store data backups, importing store data, and customising the program interface with a number of options.

Backing up and restoring store data

Whenever you have entered a significant amount of new data (e.g. upon generating the store anew) you should perform a backup.



Caution!

Danger of loss of data! Perform regular backups of your store to external media, such as CD-ROM. This is to prevent total or partial loss of data in the event of a computer disk crash. A hardware fault or electrical power cut can wipe out all modifications and new data entered during that session.

SmartStore 2000 Express contains its own backup feature, which you can call up under File/Create/Restore backup copy. The backup data is stored in the folder called "Backup", in the program's system folder. This is the file you should copy to an external disk, and store in a secure place.

The backup file contains the complete information you have entered into your store, including both general store and inventory information, as well as all illustrations and forms. In the event of a data loss, you can use the restore function to generate your store on the basis of the latest backup available.

Performing a backup

When you execute File/Create/Restore backup copy, the following dialog window appears:

C	reate/Restore Backup		×
Г	Current Backup Copies:		
	Backup Copies:		
	Name	Size	Changed on
	OfficePro.smb	107 KB	8/4/2000 10:06:40 PM
			•
			Delate 1
	Eackup Copy	ore	
L			
	Help		⊆lose
-			

A list of past backups will be displayed. To create a new backup based on the latest store configuration, proceed as follows:

• Click on Backup Copy.

A small dialog window will appear.

• Enter the name for the new backup file and click on OK.

The file will be saved with the extension .smb automatically added to the name.



Note! It is recommended to use a different name for each new backup, to avoid overwriting previous backups.

The new backup file will be created and saved, and you will see its entry added to the list.

• Click on Close to finish.

Restoring your data from a backup



Caution! When you restore your virtual store's data, the backup will overwrite the version of the store currently loaded. It is strongly recommended to save the current version under a different name first.

To restore your store to the condition it was at when a particular backup was performed, proceed as follows.

- Enter File/Create/Restore backup copy.
- In the dialog window, select the backup file you want to use and click on Restore.

You will see the following dialog window:

SmartStore 2000 Express	×I
The backup copy [OfficePro.smb $\]$ will be restored at the next startup of the software! Please restart the software.	
ок	

• Click on OK to proceed. The program will be shut down and restarted.

When the program restarts, a message will appear confirming the successful restore procedure. You can continue to use or edit the store.

Importing store data

You can easily import existing data for your store from other sources. The program contains a powerful import filter for text-format data saved in other applications. For example, if you possess a complete inventory of articles that was created with another program, you can import the entire inventory at once using the import assistant of SmartStore 2000 Express. In this way you avoid having to manually re-type all of that information.

• Enter File/Import Data.

You will see the following dialog window:

orti mp	ort Selection or cre	ation of a	an import routine .			<u>؛</u> ا
	Welcome to the Import Wizard. This wizard helps you record your data in this application. Enter the desired data on each page and click on 'Next'. You can return to the previous pages at any time using the 'Back' button.					
	Select an existi	ng impor	t routine or creat	e a new or	ne.	New
	Artikel.txt	TEXT	08.08.00 13:01	:04 08	.08.00 13:06:52	<u>D</u> elete
ŀ	Help		<	<u>B</u> ack.	<u>N</u> ext >	⊆lose

You can either use an existing import profile to import a certain range of data, or define a new import profile.

• Click on New to enter a name for the import profile.

• Click on Next.

You will see the following dialog window:

Import	? >	×
Import Selectior	on of a data source	۲ ۱
Select a	a file containing your source data.	
∑ource	 C:\products\products.txt 	
<u>H</u> elp	< Back Next > Close	

• Specify the path to use for the import files in the Source field or click on the source for the path.



Notes!

- The current program version only supports text-only import files. Future versions are being prepared that will recognise other formats.
- If the sum of existing data records and records to be imported exceeds 20 (or 500), the import process will be aborted.
- Click on Next.

	1103111			Ϋ́
Data Separator	rs I▼ Semicolon I I Other I	Space	Text recognition " Import begins with 1	-
Column head	ings available	l Calco ariao		-
1 2 3 4 5 6	Basketball Basketball Football Handball Volleyball 6 Golf balls Golf club	4.95 USD 5.95 USD 6.95 USD 4.65 USD 1.35 USD 21.95 USD	_	

• In the "Data separators" window, indicate the character that was used to separate data elements when the data was exported.

The "Data Preview" shows you the data, organised in columns.

- Select the Text regognition delimiter.
- In the drop-down list Import begins with, correct the line from which you want the import to begin, if necessary.
- Check the option Column headings available if the data to be imported was saved complete with column headings.

The data preview should then display the appropriate column headings.

• Click on Next.

Import				? ×
Import Selection of the target table and fi	ilters			
Import Products				
C Import Categories				
Apply Filter				1
Field Comparise C	riterion	Link	Numerical	
ltem-no. ▼ >= ▼ 1		AND 💌		
Item-no. 💌 <= 💌 1	256		Γ	
			Г	
			Г	
Help	< <u>B</u> ack	Next >		ose

- Select the appropriate option Products or Categories to be imported.
- Define filters if necessary for the data range to be imported, using the criteria provided.
- If you know that a particular field of the source data is numerical only, put a check next to Numerical.

In the example above, all data records will be imported with a product number in the range 1 to 1256, inclusive.

• Click on Next.

ort import		?
Specifying the sour	e-target fields	
Select from 'Source field' the field in wh button. The combir procedure until you the combination the	field' a field from your source file and specify under 'Targe ich you want to import its content. Then select the 'Add' ation will then be displayed in the bottom area. Repeat this have assigned all relevant fields. Then select in the upper at will serve as key field.	t ; field
Source Field	Target Field	
Source Field Sales price %►ltem-no. Product name	Target Field Retail price Product-no. Description Remove Edit	Field
Help	< Back Next > N	

• Select a field name from Source Field, then select the Target Field into which you want to map that category of data, and click on Add.

The two fields will appear in the table in the lower half.

- Continue mapping the remainder of the data fields in the same way.
- Select the line containing the index field and click on the Reference field button to define it.
- Click on Next.

Import	? ×
Import Specify import settings	÷
Select the desired import type.	
Simply append data	
Select this option if the data to be imported has never been imported before.	
C Append new data and update old data	
If the source file contains updated or new data. The reference field you defined will serve as comparison index.	
C Update only existing data	
If the source file contains updated or new data, but new data are to be excluded from the import. The reference field you defined will serve as comparison index.	
Help < Back Next >	⊆lose

• Determine the type of import you want, and click on Next.

Import			? ×
Import Import ready!			
All entries have been made. By s	electing 'Finish'	you can run the import	
Status			
Import data are ready for the im	port		
Help	< <u>B</u> ack	Finish	Close

• Click on Finish to finish importing the data.

You will be able to follow progress of the import process through a status window.

You will see status reports like this:

ort			?
mport Import ready!			4
All entries have been	nade. By selecting 'Finish' ye	ou can run the import.	
Status			
Appending data reco Checking data record Appending data record Checking data record	d 5 6 d 6 7 d 7		
Checking data record Appending data record Checking data record Appending data record Appending data record	8 8 48 9 d9		- 11
Checking data record Appending data reco	10 d 10		•
Help	< <u>B</u> ack	Exit N	⊆lose

Once the import process is finished, the number of data records imported will be displayed.



Further settings

The menu of SmartStore 2000 Express contains two other important groups of commands: View and Tools. These are commands that allow you to customise the program's working environment and specify some important user preferences.

Changing views of the working interface

The View menu, like many others, is a context-sensitive one. Depending on your current location within the folder hierarchy, you will be able to select different options for viewing.

Suppose you are in the product manager, working on a product group:

📄 SmartSt	刘 SmartStore 2000 Express					
<u>File</u> <u>E</u> dit	<u>View</u> Tools Actions ?					
⇐ ▾ ⇒	Current View 🕨 🕨	🗸 List				
। १ _{२म छ} न्द्र भ	Go to	<u>C</u> ard Headers				
		Product Cards with <u>D</u> etails				
	✓ Status Bar	Display 'Group By' Box				
	Selection Bar	掎 Display header column for new data records				
		Customize Current View				
	🔁 Up one Level	Customize Current wew				
	Expand/Collapse groups 🕨 🕨					

• Click on the desired view or grouping option.

The changes will immediately be displayed on the screen.

Basic program settings

The Tools menu allows you to specify some basic user preferences to simplify your work.

• Select Tools/Settings.

General settings

The dialog window shown here will be displayed, with the tab card General:

Settings	×
	Catalog language
Gener	al Convert <u>G</u> raphics Database Services <u>N</u> umber Ranges Dublish
Store Fol	der
)	Select the folder in which all store files will be saved when the store is generated. This folder is the place from which your store will later be published on the Web.
	Path: :\Programme\SmartStore\SmartStore 2000 Express\Stage\ 🗠
Name of	the home page
	Enter the file name that will be used by the home page of your store. This setting depends on the configuration of the Web server where your store will be published (default is 'index.html', but can vary). Consult your Internet service provider.
	Name: index.html
Help	OK Cancel Apply

The Store Folder section is used to specify the folder (path) in which all your store data will be saved.

• Click on the 🔄 button to select the path.

• In the Name of the home page section, enter the name of your store's home page.



The name of the home page will depend on the system configuration of your ISP. Contact your ISP to ensure the information you enter here is correct. Otherwise, customers may be unable to enter your store via your domain.

Converting graphics

This card lets you select the option of automatically converting all product graphics into JPEG format. This saves you the time-intensive work of converting your store graphics, which may be from many different sources and in various formats.

Settings					×	
	Cata	log language			1	
General	Convert Graphics	Database Serv	vices Number R	anges <u>P</u> u	blish (
You can s Web-com	You can specify whether and how the graphic files are converted to the Web-compatible JPEG format during the assignment procedure.					
Convert grap	phics automatically in	o JPEG format				
<u>C</u> ompression	n Rate: 85 💽 🔹 🤉	6 Compress	ion <u>Typ</u> e; Default	•		
Picture Attributes	51					
Product picture	:	Thumbna	ail:			
C Max. <u>H</u> eight	(pixel)	Max.	Height (pixel) 8	0 -		
Max. Width ((pixel) 250	C Max.	Width (pixel)			
🔽 Do not scale	JPEG files					
Help		ОК	Cancel	Ap <u>o</u> ly		

• Put a check in the first box, if you want all selected graphics files automatically converted to JPG files.

You can specify the Compression Rate and Compression Type. In making your choice, you should remember that this will be a compromise between keeping file sizes reasonably small and maintaining a good quality of image. These settings will apply to all your store graphics files.

• Select the desired compression rate and type of compression.

Remember, with increased compression, the image quality will deteriorate. Use the preview function to test the effect of your settings.

You can exempt GIF and JPEG files from automatic conversion. Otherwise, you can check the next two boxes to have files in these formats converted, too. This may be useful if you wish to increase the compression rate, for example.

• Check the boxes, as desired.

In the Picture Attributes section, you can specify a single uniform maximum height and width for the JPG file images. This makes it easier to standardise your store's visual layout. Depending on the basic layout you have chosen, you can specify the width or height of the images, to ensure that all article thumbnails and detailed images have the same size in your store.

- Select the desired options for Product picture and Thumbnail, and specify the maximum number of pixels.
- Put a check in the bottom box if you want to activate the dialog for automatic conversion of graphic files (you may have disabled this option when you were importing graphics earlier).

Database maintenance

Database maintenance is needed to Compress Database. There are two possibilities for the frequency of this procedure, choose the one desired in this menu.

Settings				×
	Cata	log language		1
General	Convert <u>G</u> raphics	Database Services	Number Ranges	Publish
Compress Da	itabase database the <u>n</u> ext ti database each <u>t</u> ime l	me the software is ru the software is run	ın	
Help		OK	Cancel /	Apply

Automatic numbering

To simplify data entry for your inventory database, you can have the program automatically number entries in certain element categories. You can separately enable or disable automatic numbering for each category.

S	ettings							×
	General	Convert (Cata Graphics	log language Database Sei	rvices	<u>N</u> umber R	anges	Publish
	123 When creat from data (and activate correspondi	ing new dai e.g., produ e the numb ng settings	ta records ct IDs). S er assignn	; you can auto elect an eleme nent in the righ	matical nt from nt windo	ly assign nu i the list on ow frame w	imbers the left ith the	
	Element: Products Categories Manufacturer Modes of Paymen Shipping Methods	t	- 🔽 Aut	omatically assic <u>P</u> refix: urrent V <u>a</u> lue: <u>I</u> ncrement	gn <u>N</u> um 1 1	bers –		
ļ	Help			ОК		ancel	Ap	pely

- Click once on the Element for which you want to define automatic numbering.
- Check the box for the element category.
- Type in the standard Prefix with which the numbers should begin (if applicable).
- Specify the Current Value from which you want automatic numbering to begin (for example, if some of the numbers have already been assigned).
- Specify the Increment by which you want the numbers to increase.
- Click on OK to finish.

Specify store target hosts

Use this card for the transfer of your store data. A "target host" consists of a complete set of transfer settings; it can be saved, edited or deleted.

Settings				×		
Catalog language						
General	Convert <u>G</u> raphics	Database Services	Number Ranges	<u>P</u> ublish		
Smart your your netwo	SmartStore allows the management of unlimited target hosts for publishing your store. A Target can be a remote resource (e.g., an FTP account with your Internet service provider) or a local one (a folder in your local network).					
To ad	To add a target host, click 'Add'.					
	Remote		<u>A</u> dd Edit <u>R</u> emove			
Help		ок с	ancel 4	Apely		

- Click on Add to add a new target host.
- Select existing target host and click on Edit to change the present configuration.



Note!

The settings in these dialog windows will depend on your ISP, so you should contact your provider to discuss what settings to make on these three cards.

• Select existing target host and click on Remove to delete it.

Changing catalogue language

This card lets you select the language of your product catalogue when SmartStore 2000 Express is already running.

Settings					×
G	eneral	Convert <u>G</u> raphic	s 📔 <u>D</u> atabase Se	rvices <u>N</u> umber F	anges <u>P</u> ublish
		Ca	atalog language		
A B	Specifies wi content tex modules, Yo Manager/St	hich language is us its are already ava ou can customize t iore Text' area.	ed to run the sto ilable in the insta hem at any time i	ore. Foreign langua alled SmartStore la in the 'Template	age nguage
	Catalog lan English (US	guage ;)			<u> </u>
	<u>F</u> ont Western				<u> </u>
Hel	P]	ок	Cancel	Apply

• Open the list box Catalogue language and choose the desired language.

In addition to that you can choose a corresponding character set from the list box Font. Depending on your choice you have to install the appropriate keyboard layout using the Windows Control panel and your Windows CD-ROM.



Note!

You can download other languages from the Smart-Store web site free of charge.

Registering your software

To register your copy of the program with SmartStore 2000 Express, go to the menu item ?/Licence. You will see the following dialog window displayed:

SmartSt	ore 2000 Express - Licensing				
B	Please enter your serial number. Leave the fields blank if you would like to use the free version that is limited to 20 products.				
	Serial number:				
	Note: Leave fields blank for free 20-product version.				
🔽 <u>D</u> isp	lay this dialog every time you run the software				
Requ	Uest license OK Cancel				

- Type in your serial number and click on OK to save.
- To disable this dialog window being shown every time the program starts, remove the check from the box.

Upgrading your program registration

If you are using the freeware version and wish to upgrade to a full license, just select menu item ?/Register. A mouse click on the Registering SmartStore button will take you to the SmartStore company web site where you can purchase a full license by giving your details and making payment arrangements. You will be given your own serial number; once you have entered it, the full-version SmartStore 2000 Express software package is yours.

User-defined program installation

Although the standard installation is useful for installing the complete version of the software, you may wish to perform a custom installation because it allows you to select the portions of the program you want installed and specify the location where it is installed.

After starting the Setup.exe file from the CD-ROM and answered the questions in the first window, proceed as follows:

• In the next dialog window of the setup assistant, check the option Custom.



• Click on Continue.

The next dialog window will be displayed:

륡 SmartStore 2000 Express - InstallShield Wizard	×
Custom Setup Select the program features you want installed.	G
Click on an icon in the list below to change how a feature is ins	talled. Feature Description German This feature requires 20 MB on bocal hard drive. , will be installed on local hard drive.
X This feature will not be available.	Change
InstallShield	Next > Cancel

• Click on one of the program modules to the left of Program files.

The menu shown here will appear on your screen.

- Click on the desired installation option.
- To change the drive or folder in which the selected program module will be installed, click on Change.
- When you are done, click on Next to finish.
Note!

Uninstalling the program



Do not manually remove the program files from your computer's drives, as this can cause problems with your software registration under Windows.

To uninstall SmartStore 2000 Express, proceed as follows:

- From the Windows Start menu, select Settings/Control Panel.
- Click on Software in the Control panel window.
- From the list of installed software that will now be displayed, select SmartStore 2000 Express and then click on Add/Remove.

This will take you to the Setup Assistant window.



- Click on Remove.
- Click on Next.
- In the next window, click on Remove again.

The various modules that make up SmartStore 2000 Express will now be uninstalled.

• When the next window is displayed, click on Finish.

That completes the process of uninstalling the program. You can now close the Windows utility "Add/Remove program properties" by clicking on OK.

Glossar

Client A computer within a network or on the internet which makes use of resources that are provided on a server for the benefit of multiple users. Context-A menu of commands, where the number and sensitive menu nature of the commands varies depending on the task being performed. CSS Cascading Style Sheets. This is an HTML specification under which page designers and users can associate style sheets to their pages. Domain name The main part of an internet 'address' or URL, like nutsandbolts.com. To move an item from one folder or location to Drag and Drop another, in many cases you can point to it, hold the left mouse button down, then move the mouse to the new location, where you release the mouse button. This is known as 'drag and drop'. Host name Your Internet Services Provider (ISP) assigns a name to that portion of server space which is going to hold your data. This will usually be the same as your domain name. HTMI HyperText Markup Language. A computer language for designing documents for the web. HTTP HyperText Transfer Protocol. The client/server protocol designed for accessing information via the web. Index field You can define a field in a database or relational spreadsheet as an index field. This is done to improve or simplify operations such as queries, updates etc. l ink A link takes the user to a different HTML document, or to a different part of the same HTML document.

Mapping	Name given to the process of assigning the contents of fields in one database to those in another.
PDF	Portable Document Format. This is a widely compatible, platform-independent document format from Adobe Systems Inc.
Server	A central administrative computer in a network or on the internet, responding to commands or requests from a client.
Site	A complete set of HTML pages, along with associated files, scripts and databases, administered on the web by an HTTP server.
SSL	Secure Socket Layer. A secure data protocol that uses 128-bit enciphering to protect data travelling between browsers and a web server. Used for secure payment transactions on the web.
Tags	Tags are used in HTML to give special formatting instructions.
Thumbnail	A 'thumbnail sketch', as the name suggests, gives a rough idea of an article for which a more detailed picture is also available.
Web forum	Forums on the web offer different groups of users an opportunity to exchange information and experiences.
Web space	The space a provider reserves for use by a particular customer. Measured in megabytes.
XML	eXtensible Markup Language. A flexible data format that may be useful if you want to import order data into XML-compatible product management systems, for example.

Index

A

adding a new product **32** alternative text **64** automatic numbering **139**

В

backing up store data 123 basic store information 38 basis currency 49 body 100 browser compatibility 104

С

catalogue contents 100 catalogue language, changing 141 checking the order 114 client 147 comparing versions 106 compatibility of used browser type 104 compression rate 137 compression type 137 configuring the store 86 contacting the store 116 context-sensitive menu 29, 147 conversion rate 53 converting graphics 136 credit card 56 CSS 147 customer forms 91 customer information form 112 customising layout 101

D

data editor **32** database maintenance **138** default method of payment **90** default tax region 90 descriptive store texts, editing 93 design folder 22 design tools 102 detailed product information 69 direct debit 56 domain name 147 domestic customers 48 Drag and Drop 147

Ε

EMU 49 euro 49

F

finance settings folder configuration folder list folders **22** foreign currencies foreign customers forms for customers

G

general product information **70** global product folders **68** graphics, converting **136**

Η

home page, name of 136 host name 147 HTML 147 HTML tags 79 HTTP 147

I

importing store data 126 index field 147

installation options, choosing 144 installing the program 15

J

JPEG format 136

Κ

key words 87

L

language, changing in catalogue 141 license query 19 link 147 link colour 109 list editor 30, 39 long description of products 79

Μ

main window 24 making an order 111 mapping 148 media manager 22 menu bar 20 meta tags 86 method of payment, choosing 113 methods of payment 55

Ν

navigation buttons **27** new design template **96** numbering, automatic **139**

0

order 111 order folder 22 order form 111 order, checking the 114 orphaned graphics 83

Ρ

page foot 100 page layout 94 payment, default method of 90 payment, methods 55 PDF 148 power search 115 predefined page layout 94 preview 105 prices in foreign currencies 48 primary currency, selecting 89 product data, entering 62 product groups, defining 62 product illustrations, managing 83 product manager 22 product options, managing 78 products, long description of 79 program installation, user-defined 143 program interface 20 program settings 135 program, leaving the 35 program, starting the 19 program, uninstalling 145 promotional products, locating 110 publishing your store 117

Q

quantity discounts quick search quick-entry method quick-entry mode

R

rates of tax registering the software registration, upgrade restoring store data

S

sales tax 45 search functions 115 secondary currency, selecting 89 serial number 19 server 148 settings, general 135 setup folder 22 shipping charge, fixed amount 59 shipping charge, price-based 61 shipping charge, weight-based 60 shipping charge. free of charge from order 60 shipping method, choosing 112 shipping methods 58 site 148 software license number 19 sorting the items in a list 32 SSL 148 starting 19 starting the program 19 status line 21 stf-file 95 store data, importing 126 store description 87 store layout, designing 94 store texts, editing 93 store, cnfiguring 86 store, generating 107 store, links 109 store, navigating through 108 store, publishing the 117 store, search functions 115 store, shortcut bar 109 system requirements 15

Т

tags 148 target group 87 target host 140 template manager 22 thumbnail 148 title bar 100 toolbar, web site 100 toolbars 20, 27

U

uninstalling the program 145

V

variants, defining **73** view your store **107** views of the working interface **134**

W

web browser 22 web forum 148 web page 100 web page, elements of a 100 web services 10 web space 148 wild card characters 33

Х

XML 11, 148